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Council’s Annual Financial Statements present both a result for 
Council and a result for the group controlled by Council consisting 
of Council and its wholly owned subsidiary, this is referred to 
as the Consolidated result. This discussion and analysis relates 

specifically to the financial performance and position of the 
Council, exclusive of the group, except for the section titled 
“Analysis of Group results” in which key differences between 
Council and Consolidated results are identified and explained.

Council has improved its financial position during the 2015-2016 
financial year, with Net Assets, and accordingly equity, increased 
by 54.7%. Net surplus is up from last year, mainly due to the 
unbudgeted grants received relating to Cyclone recovery.

Council added $0.7M of new assets to its asset base in line 
with its 2015/2016 budget. Council has a total of $7.9M, an 
increase of $4.6M from last year, in cash backed replacement 
and contingency reserves for the purposes of maintaining 

Council’s asset base into the future and planning for other future 
expenditure commitments.

Cash investment and debt management continue to be a focus 
with an aim of maintaining a strong level of liquidity, as does 
Rating strategy and Grant management with an aim of improving 
long term sustainability.

Overview

2015-2016 Results Overview - in AUD Million 2015-2016 2014-2015 Variance %

Total Operating Revenues 46.9 36.6 10.3 28.2%

Total Operating Expenses 36.3 35.3 1.1 3.0%

Total Comprehensive Income i.e Net Surplus 10.6 1.3 9.3 699.7%

Capitalised Expenditures 0.7 0.4 0.3 77.1%

Total Assets 35.3 25.1 10.2 40.6%

Total Liabilities 5.4 5.8 -0.4 -6.5%

Net Assets 30.0 19.4 10.6 54.7%

Total Cash and Investments 27.2 16.7 10.5 62.8%
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Total operating income in 2015-2016 of $46.9M was 21.7% 
higher than the previous year. This $10.2M increase is largely 
attributable to grant funding and other operating revenue streams.

Council remains heavily reliant on Grant Funding to finance 
operations. Council considers itself to be viable, but not 
necessarily sustainable in the long term given the significant 
reliance on Grant Funding, which for the 2015-2016 Financial Year 
accounted for 70% of all Council revenue. To become sustainable, 
Council is actively working on increasing revenue from non-Grant 
funding sources, with the aim of decreasing the ratio of Grant to 
non-Grant revenue significantly over the coming few years.

Grants Revenue was 24.1% higher than the previous year, 
equating to a $7.9M variance. This increase is largely attributable 
to unbudgeted grants received during the year relating to 
cyclone road recovery and unbudgeted receipts from insurance 
settlements.

User charges and fees were 3.6% lower than the previous year 
due to the decrease in medicare subsidies.

Rates and Annual Charges increased by 12.6% in 2015-2016, in 
line with Council’s rating strategy. Though this category of revenue 
has increased in percentage terms compared with last year, in 

total, Rates and Annual Charges accounts for only 8% of Council’s 
total revenue in 2015/16. This in part highlights the restrictions 
placed on Council to increase rates on Mining Tenements beyond 
CPI. It also highlights a contrast with Northern Territory Municipal 
Councils who raise upwards of 60% of their total revenue from 
Rates and Charges. Council’s strategy to increase its rates 
revenue over the coming years is one measure towards achieving 
financial sustainability.

Other Operating Revenues have increased by 41.6% from 
previous year results. During the year, Council has received  
unbudgeted revenue from the local government which relates to 
National Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements.

Interest revenue increased by 25.3% compared to previous years 
results despite declining interest rates. This can be attributed to 
an increased focus on cash management to maximise investment 
returns.

Profit from disposal of Assets was $0.1M higher in 2015-2016 
than the previous year.

Financial Performance

Total Operating Revenues - in AUD Million 2015-2016 2014-2015 Variance %

Grants 32.9 25.0 7.9 24.1%

User Charges and Fees 5.2 5.4 -0.2 -3.6%

Rates and Annual Charges 3.5 3.1 0.4 12.6%

Other Operating Revenues 4.3 2.5 1.8 41.6%

Miscellaneous:

Interest 0.7 0.5 0.2 25.3%

Profit from Disposal of Assets 0.3 0.2 0.1 21.7%

TOTAL 46.9 36.7 10.2 21.7%

Total Operating Revenues

Operating revenues are derived from 
various sources including grants, 
user charges and fees, rates and 
annual charges, other operating 
revenues, interest revenue, revenue 
from disposal of assets and profit 
distribution from wholly owned 
subsidiary. A breakdown of the 
Council’s 2015-2016 operating 
revenue is shown here.

2015-2016 Breakdown of 
Operating Revenues

Grants

User Charges and Fees

Rates and Annual Charges

Other Operating Revenues

Miscellaneous
70%

11%

8%

9% 2%
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Total operating expenses for 2015-2016 were $36.3M, which is 
2.9% higher than the previous year. Expenses have increased on 
materials and contracts, and other operating expenses, however 
are offset by a decrease in depreciation and amortisation, and 
employee costs.

Employee Costs were 1.9% lower in 2015-2016 than the previous 
year, despite a moderate wage increase being passed on to all 
Council employees per the East Arnhem Employee Agreement. 
The overall decrease can be attributed to difficulties experienced 
in the areas of recruitment and attendance.

Expenditure on Materials and Contracts was $1M higher than the 
previous year with increased spending on Road upgrade projects 
undertaken during the year.

Depreciation and Amortisation was 16.5% lower than the previous 
year, this is due to lower asset base compared to last year as 
a result of a lower level of capital replacement in the 2015-16 
financial year.

Other operating expenses increased by 5.3% compared with the 
previous year, these are attributable to increase in minor asset 
purchases, grants repayment, and staff training. The effects of this 
variance were in part offset by decreased expenditure on vehicles, 
hire of plant and equipment and travel expenses.

Total Operating Expenses - in AUD Million 2015-2016 2014-2015 Variance %

Employee Costs 14.2 14.5 -0.3 -1.9%

Material and Contracts 11.9 10.9 1.0 9.5%

Depreciation and Amortisation 1.1 1.3 -0.2 -16.5%

Other Operating Expenses 9.0 8.5 0.5 5.3%

Loss on Disposal of Assets 0.1 0.1  0.0 5.3%

TOTAL 36.3 35.3 1.0 2.9%

Total Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are made 
up of employee costs, material 
and contracts, depreciation and 
amortisation, other operating 
expenses and loss on disposal 
of assets and exclude capitalised 
expenditures. A breakdown of the 
Council’s 2015-2016 operating 
expenses is shown below.

2015-2016 Breakdown of 
Operating Expenses

Employee Costs

Material and Contracts

Depreciation and Amortisation

Other Operating Expenses

Loss on Disposal of Assets

39%

33%

3%

25%

2%
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Actual Performance against 
(Updated) Budget

Council’s performance against budget is reviewed 
regularly to make sure that targets are being 
met for both revenue and expenditure, and that 
appropriate action is taken to respond to changes 
in the economic environment. The following analysis 
is based on the 2015-2016 original budget as 
adopted by Council in July 2015, updated for 
budget amendments during the year in line with 
Council and Executive delegations.

Overall, Council revenue was $6.2M higher than budget, 
representing a 15.2% variance. It is important to note that 
Council’s budget includes unexpended Grants from previous years 
that are to be spent in the current year in the budgeted Grant 
figure. Council does this to match revenue with spending both for 
internal financial performance management and so as to adhere to 
the Local Government Act and associated Accounting regulations 
that mandate that Council cannot budget for a deficit. Council’s 
financial statements which are prepared in accordance with 
Accounting Standards do not include unexpended Grants, hence 
a variance will occur between budget and actual as a result of this 
differing treatment.

Grants revenue was $4.5M higher than budget. Budgeted Grant 
revenue includes $4.4M of unexpended Grants from previous 
years. Adjusting the Grant result for unexpended Grants brings the 
variance to $8.9M which is largely due to the unbudgeted grant 
funding received.

User charges and fees were lower than budget by $0.6M due 
to medicare subsidies and fuel distribution services being less of 
budget expectations.

Rates and Annual Charges showed a small but favourable 
variance of $0.1M, being 4.3% ahead of budget.

Other Operating Revenues were $2.1M higher than budget largely 
attributable to the reimbursement from the NT Government 
for expenses incurred in previous financial years for damage 
sustained in disasters Cyclone Lam and Nathan as well as a 
$600k dividend payment from Latitude 12 Pty Ltd.

Interest revenue was 33.8% higher than budget as an increased 
focus on cash management led to investment returns in excess of 
expectations.

Profit from disposal of Assets is in line with budget, however this 
is partly offset by Loss on Disposal of Assets shown separately 
under Operating expenses. Net gain on disposal of Assets is 
$0.2M.

Total Operating Revenues - in AUD Million 2015-2016 Actual 2015-2016 Budget Variance %

Grants 32.9 28.4 4.5 16.0%

User Charges and Fees 5.2 5.8 -0.6 -10.1%

Rates and Annual Charges 3.5 3.4 0.1 4.3%

Other Operating Revenues 4.3 2.2 2.1 94.4%

Interest 0.7 0.5 0.2 33.8%

Profit from Disposal of Assets 0.3 0.4 -0.1 -36.1%

TOTAL 46.9 40.7 6.2 15.2%

Operating Revenues



Overall, Council expenditure was $2.6M lower than budget, 
representing a 6.7% favourable variance.

Employee costs were lower than budget by $2M due in part to 
understaffing, staff changes and low attendance.

Materials and contracts were in line with budget. There had been 
lower spending on building, facility and assets maintenance 
services due to scheduled maintenance audits being put on hold 
as a result of focus on cyclone recovery projects. This has been 
offset by an increase in spending on road upgrades undertaken 
during the year. 

Depreciation and Amortisation was lower than budget by $0.4M, 
representing a 27.6% variance as a result of disposals of Plant 
and equipment and timing of capital expenditures during the 
year. Acquisitions during the year were in line with Council’s asset 
replacement plan.

Other Operating expenses overall were in line with budget. 
Grants repayment, bad debt provisions, operating leases, travel 
expenses, freight and repairs and maintenance are higher than 
budget, however, these are offset by lesser spending on aged and 
disabiltiy respite services and insurance expenses.

Total Operating Expenses - in AUD Million 2015-2016 Actual 2015-2016 Budget Variance %

Employee Costs 14.2 16.2 -2.0 -12.2%

Material and Contracts 11.9 12.0 -0.1  -0.6%

Depreciation and Amortisation 1.1 1.5 -0.4 -27.6%

Other Operating Expenses 9.0 9.1 -0.1 -1.6%

Loss on Disposal of Assets 0.1 0.0 0.1 100.0%

TOTAL 36.2 38.8 -2.6 -6.7%

Operating Expenses
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Cash and cash equivalents increased in 2015-2016 from 
the previous year by $10.5M. Of the $27.2M cash and cash 
equivalents balance, Council has an unrestricted cash balance of 
$6.9M, a decrease of $1.9M from the previous year.

Trade and Other Receivables, current and non current, has 
increased by $0.7M from last year. This is mainly due to an 
increase in Other receivables relating to grants billing. Rates 
and annual charges remain to be a signficant portion of the total 
outstanding receivables comprising 40% of the total, however 
Council has provided for as doubtful in line with Accounting 
Standards and Audit requirements. Council continues to actively 
pursue these outstanding amounts.

Other current assets largely relate to accrued revenue and prepaid 
expenses. The decrease of $0.1M from last year was due to a 
lesser revenue accrued in grants at year end.

During the 2015-2016 year, as a result of Council’s future 
intentions, Latitude 12 Pty Ltd is no longer recognised an asset 
held for sale, but rather as an Investment, the 2014-15 financials 
have been restated to show this change. The investment in 
Latitude 12 Pty Ltd is shown at its purchase price.

Property, Plant and Equipment decreased by $0.9M compared 
to the previous year. Additions of $0.6M were offset by asset 
disposals, and depreciation and amortisation of $1.1M.

Other Assets represent securities that are held over credit facilities 
extended to Council. Other Assets in 2015-2016 remain in line 
with the previous year.

Financial Position

ASSETS - in AUD Million 2015-2016 2014-2015 Variance %

Cash and Cash Equivalents 27.2 16.7 10.5 63.0%

Current Trade and Other Receivables 1.4 0.4 0.9 211.0%

Other Current Assets 0.3 0.4 -0.1 -14.4%

Non-Current Trade and Other Receivables 0.0 0.2 -0.2 -100.0%

Investments 1.1 1.1 0.0 100.0%

Property, Plant and Equipment 4.5 5.4 -0.9 -16.8%

Other Assets 0.8 0.8 0.0 0.5%

TOTAL 35.3 25.1 10.2 40.8%

Assets

Assets consist of current assets, which can be 
converted into cash in less than one year, and non 
current assets which are held by Council for a longer 
term and are not likely to be converted to cash within 
a year. Non current assets include, but are not limited 
to, Buildings & Infrastructure, Plant & Equipment and 
Motor Vehicles. A break down of Council’s 2015-2016 
asset balances is shown below:
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All categories of liabilities remained relatively constant in 2015-
2016 when compared with the previous year, with only a $0.4M 
decrease overall. Variances of note include Trade and Other 

Payables, which decreased by $0.5M, as a result of timing on 
payments Borrowings which also decreased by $0.1M as a result 
of principal repayments against this liability.

Equity increased by the net operating result of $10.6M.

The Unexpended Grant Reserve increased by $7.9M in 2015-
2016 compared to the previous year. The $12.3M Grant Reserve 
represents grant revenue that had not been fully expended at the 
end of 2015-2016, but is expected to be carried forward into the 
next year to be expended on the funded activity.

Accumulated Funds decreased by $1.9M. These funds are held 
for the purpose of funding the Council’s continuing operations, 
including operating and long term capital requirements.

Council’s cash backed Replacement & Contingency reserves 
established to provide for the future replacement and/or 
development of Council’s fleet, waste management & cemetery 
facilities, roads and associated infrastructure and funds put aside 
to provide for future electoral and disaster relief requirements, 
have been increased by $4.6M as compared to previous year.

LIABILITIES - in AUD Million 2015-2016 2014-2015 Variance %

Trade and Other Payables 1.4 1.9 -0.5 -24.2%

Other Current Liabilities 0.3 0.2 0.1 45.6%

Current Borrowings 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0%

Current Provisions 1.7 1.5 0.1 9.1%

Non-current Borrowings 1.6 1.8 -0.1 -6.6%

Non-current Provisions 0.2 0.2 0.0 -10.4%

TOTAL 5.4 5.8 -0.4 -6.5%

EQUITY - in AUD Million 2015-2016 2014-2015 Variance %

Unexpended Grant Reserves 12.3 4.4 7.9 178.9%

Replacement & Contingency Reserves 7.9 3.3 4.6 137.1%

Accumulated Funds 9.8 11.6 -1.9 -16.1%

TOTAL 30.0 19.4 10.6 54.7%

Liabilities

Liabilities consist of current liabilities that are expected to be 
settled within one year and non current liabilities which are not due 
to be paid within 12 months in the ordinary course of business.

Equity
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Cash provided by Operating Activities was $7.4M higher in 
2015-2016 than the previous year. Predominantly this is due 
to unexpended grants received during the year that have been 
carried forward to the following year.

Net cash used in investing activities in 2015-2016 was minimal as 

a result of capital spending being offset by asset disposals.

Cash used in financing activities represents the repayment of 
principal against the Commercial Bill.

Upon consolidation with Council’s wholly owned subsidiary, overall 
financial position is $0.125M better as represented by Net Assets. 
This is largely reflective of cash held by the subsidiary that is not 
otherwise recognised in Council’s results.

Financial performance has decreased by $0.376M at the 
consolidated level. This shows that upon consolidation and 
elimination of intercompany transactions, total expenses incurred 
by the subsidiary are higher than the revenue earned from third 
parties.

CASH FLOWS - in AUD Million 2015-2016 2014-2015 Variance %

Net cash provided by operating activities 10.7 3.2 7.4 231.8%

Net cash used in investing activities  0.0 -0.4 0.4 -91.5%

Net cash used in financing activities -0.1 -0.2 0.1 -50.0%

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held 10.5 2.5 8.0 315%

2015-2016 Results Overview - in AUD Million Group Council Variance %

Total Operating Revenue 47.521 46.894 0.627 1.3%

Total Operating Expenses 37.311 36.309 1.002 2.7%

Total Comprehensive Income i.e. Net Surplus 10.210 10.585 -0.376 -0.014

Capitalised Expenditures 0.699 0.687 0.012 1.8%

Total Assets 36.198 35.345 0.853 2.4%

Total Liabilities 6.118 5.390 0.728 11.9%

Net Assets 30.080 29.955 0.125 0.4%

Total Cash and Investments 28.872 27.220 1.652 5.7%

Cash Flows

Cash flows are classified as those provided by/used in operating, 
investing and financing activities.

Analysis of Group results
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Operating Surplus Ratio Target 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014 2012-2013 2011-2012

Indicator 0 - 15% 22.6% 3.6% 6.0% 5.2% -10.7%

This indicator shows the extent of the council’s ability to cover operating expenses from operating revenue.

The increase in operating surplus ratio from last year is due to unbudgeted grants mainly relating to road infrastructure and upgrade received relating to 
Cyclone recovery in the amount of $7.97M.

Asset Sustainability Ratio Target 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014 2012-2013 2011-2012

Indicator > 100% 63.2% 29.3% 155.8% 54.8% 72.6%

This indicator shows approximation of the extent to which assets managed by the council are being replaced as assets reach the end of their useful lives.

Asset replacements during the year have doubled from last year, acquisitions were mainly plant and equipment and motor vehicles.

Interest Coverage Ratio Target 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014 2012-2013 2011-2012

Indicator 3 & above 93.2 16.0 21.7 16.1 13.5

This indicator is designed to determine how easily the council can pay interest on outstanding debt/loan.

This is largely due to an increase in operating income as a result of increased in unbudgeted grant funding.

Current Assets Ratio Target 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014 2012-2013 2011-2012

Indicator >1 5.6 4.7 4.2 2.0 1.6

This indicator is designed to provide information on the ability of the council to meet its short-term financial obligations as they become due out of current 
assets.

Rates and Charges 
Coverage on Core 
Services Ratio

Target 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014 2012-2013 2011-2012

Indicator 40% & above 13.6% 17.7% 15.8% 12.8% 12.6%

This indicator shows the extent that revenue from rates & charges assists with funding Core Service activities.

Rates and Charges 
Coverage on Total 
Operating Expenses Ratio

Target 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014 2012-2013 2011-2012

Indicator 40% & above 9.8% 8.7% 7.5% 5.4% 4.1%

This indicator shows the extent of the council's ability to cover operating expenses out of rates and charges.

Net Financial Liabilities Ratio Target 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014 2012-2013 2011-2012

Indicator < 60-80% -50.0% -32.1% -24.2% -17.4% -8.3%

This indicator is designed to measure capacity of the council to meet its financial obligations from operating revenue streams.

This ratio continues to improve year on year with increase in total current assets of $9.74M and decrease in liabilities of $0.4M. This is influenced 
predominantly with the unbudgeted grant funding received.

Key Performance Indicators

The Council has adopted a set of financial key performance 
indicators as means of assessing its efficiency in achieving its 
objectives. These are shown below.



Council’s Net Asset position has increased by $10.6M, with 
Council delivering a surplus for the fourth year in a row. Council is 
within target range on 4 out of 7 of it’s key financial performance 
indicators, with rates coverage indicators continuing to fall outside 
of the desired range.

While Council is considered a going concern (able to fund its 
next 12 months operations), the challenge to become financially 
sustainable is at the fore of Council’s decision making as it sets 
financial policy and direction for the coming years.

Conclusion
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
to the Members of East Arnhem Regional Council 
 
We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial report of East Arnhem 
Regional Council and subsidiaries (the “Council”), which comprises the consolidated 
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of working capital, consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information to the financial report and the statement by the Chief Executive Officer of the 
consolidated entity comprising the Council and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or 
from time to time during the financial year. 

Responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer for the financial report 
The Chief Executive Officer of the Council is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and 
the Local Governments Act and Regulations 2008. This responsibility includes such internal 
controls as the Chief Executive Officer determines are necessary to enable the preparation 
of the financial report to be free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.   

Auditor’s responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards which require us to 
comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from 
material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
report, whether due to fraud or error.   

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
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judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
report, whether due to fraud or error.   

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
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accounting estimates made by the Chief Executive Officer, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our unqualified audit opinion. 

Independence 
In conducting our audit, we have complied with the applicable independence requirements 
of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board. 

Auditor’s Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial report of East Arnhem Regional Council: 

i presents fairly, in all material respects, the  consolidated entity’s financial position as 
at 30 June 2016 and of its performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and  

ii complies with Australian Accounting Standards and  the relevant legislation; and  

the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
 

 

GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PTY LTD 
Chartered Accountants 

 
 
 
 

P W Warr 
Partner - Audit & Assurance 
 
Perth, 21 September 2016  
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I, John Japp, the Chief Executive Officer of the East Arnhem Regional Council, certify that 
the Annual Financial Statements:

(a) have been, to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, properly drawn 
up in accordance with all applicable Australian Accounting Standards, the Local 
Government Act and the Local Government (Accounting) Regulations for the year 
ended 30 June 2016; and

(b) are in accordance with the accounting policies and other records of the Council.

Chief Executive Officer’s 

Certificate

John Japp

Chief Executive Officer

Date: 21 September 2016
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Consolidated Statement 
of Profit or Loss and 
Other Comprehensive 
Income
For the year ended 30 June 2016
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 Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

Note  $  $ $ $

CONTINUING OPERATIONS   

Operating Revenues

Grants 3(a) 32,931,189 24,978,318 32,931,189 24,875,847

User Charges and Fees 3(b) 5,213,776 5,428,026 5,213,776 5,428,026

Rates and Annual Charges 3(c) 3,546,765 3,068,122 3,546,765 3,068,122

Other Operating Revenues 3(d) 4,863,746 3,272,803 4,277,863 2,456,899

Interest 3(e) 709,800 532,003 669,120  532,003

Profit from Disposal of Assets 5 255,491 219,478 255,491 219,478

Total Operating Revenues 47,520,767 37,498,750 46,894,204 36,580,375

Operating Expenses

Employee Costs 4(a) (16,541,799) (15,200,358) (14,231,691) (14,451,089)

Materials and Contracts 4(b) (9,842,601) (10,878,613)  (11,931,819) (10,878,613)

Depreciation and Amortisation 4(c) (1,106,968) (1,387,905) (1,085,820) (1,321,270)

Other Operating Expenses 4(d) (9,702,839) (8,481,746) (8,954,123) (8,481,746)

Loss on Disposal of Assets 5 (116,777) (123,977) (105,342)  (123,977)

Bargain Gain From Purchase of Business 17 - 391,203 - -

Total Operating Expenses (37,310,984) (35,681,396) (36,308,795) (35,256,695)

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM 
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

10,209,783 1,817,354 10,585,409 1,323,680

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - - -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR 
THE YEAR

10,209,783 1,817,354 10,585,409 1,323,680

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

27East Arnhem Regional Council | Annual Report: Financials



Consolidated Statement 
of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2016
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 Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

Note  $  $ $ $

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 28,871,614 18,736,554 27,219,845 16,721,617

Trade and Other Receivables 7 1,554,823 678,779 1,351,260 434,477

Other Current Assets 8(a) 372,574 426,869 342,487 426,869

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 30,799,011 19,842,202 28,913,592 17,582,963

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and Other Receivables 7  - 238,695 - 225,230

Investments in Subsidiaries 9 - 5 1,092,830 1,092,835

Property, Plant and Equipment 10 4,555,495 5,549,785 4,494,779 5,392,526

Other Assets 8(b) 843,786 843,786 843,786 843,786

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  5,399,281 6,632,271 6,431,395 7,554,377

TOTAL ASSETS  36,198,292 26,474,473 35,344,987 25,137,340

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and Other Payables 11(a) 1,764,251 2,477,077 1,449,634 1,912,877

Other Current Liabilities 11(c) 529,801 190,076 276,658 190,076

Borrowings 16 116,000 116,000 116,000 116,000

Provisions 11(b) 1,777,078 781,587 1,680,911 1,540,760

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  4,187,130 4,564,740 3,523,203 3,759,713

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Borrowings 16 1,649,000 1,765,000 1,649,000 1,765,000

Provisions 11(b) 282,301 274,655 218,043 243,295

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  1,931,301 2,039,655 1,867,043 2,008,295

TOTAL LIABILITIES  6,118,431 6,604,395 5,390,246 5,768,008

NET ASSETS  30,079,861 19,870,078 29,954,741 19,369,332

EQUITY

Unexpended Grants Reserve 14 12,271,325 4,400,508 12,271,325 4,400,508

Assets Revaluation Reserve  - - - -

Replacement and Contingency Reserve 15 7,925,000 3,342,000 7925,000 3,342,000

Accumulated Surplus  9,883,536 12,127,570 9,758,416 11,626,824

TOTAL EQUITY  30,079,861 19,870,078 29,954,741 19,369,332

The above Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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 Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

Note  $  $ $ $

CURRENT ASSETS

Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 8,357,041 10,866,145 6,958,414 8,871,208

Trade and Other Receivables 7 1,554,823 678,779 1,351,260 434,477

Other Assets 8(a) 372,574 426,869 342,487 426,869

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  10,284,438 11,971,793 8,652,161 9,732,554

Less:

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and Other Payables 11(a) 1,764,251 2,477,077 1,449,634 1,912,877

Provisions 11(b) 1,777,078 1,781,587 1,680,911 1,540,760

Other Liabilities, excluding unexpended grants 11(c) 529,801 190,076 276,659 190,076

Borrowings 16 116,000 116,000 116,000 116,000

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  4,187,130 4,564,740 3,523,204 3,759,713

NET CURRENT ASSETS (Working Capital)  6,097,308 7,407,053 5,128,956 5,972,841

CURRENT RATIO (this is the ratio of 
current assets to current liabilities)

 2.46 2.62 2.46 2.59

The above Consolidated Statement of Working Capital should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2016

Replacement 
& Contingency 

Reserve 

Unexpended 
Grant 

Reserves 

Assets 
Revaluation 
Reserves 

Accumulated 
Funds 

Total 

CONSOLIDATED $ $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2014 3,342,000 3,415,553 750,165 10,545,006 18,052,724

Net profit for the year - - - 1,817,354 1,817,354

Other Comprehensive Income - - - - -

Total Comprehensive Income  - - - 1,817,354 1,817,354

Transaction with Owners in their capacity as 
owners

Expended grants from previous year (Note 14) - (2,305,409) - 2,305,409 -

Prior year unexpended grants repaid during 
the year (Note 14)

- (33,516) - 33,516 -

Revenues in current year not expended (Note 14) - 3,323,880 - (3,323,880) -

Transfer of realised asset revaluation reserves 
to accumulated funds

- - (750,165) 750,165 -

Transfer of accumulated funds to replacement 
& contingency reserve (Note15) 

- - - - -

 - 984,955 (750,165) (234,790) -

Balance at 30 June 2015 3,342,000 4,400,508 - 12,127,570 19,870,078

Net profit for the year    10,209,783 10,209,783

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income    10,209,783 10,209,783

Transaction with Owners in their capacity as 
owners

Expended grants from previous year (Note 14) - (3,079,922) - 3,079,922 -

Prior year unexpended grants repaid during 
the year (Note 14)

- (471,303) - 471,303 -

Revenues in current year not expended (Note 14) - 11,422,042 - (11,422,042) -

Transfer of realised asset revaluation reserves 
to accumulated funds

 - - - - -

Transfer of accumulated funds to replacement 
& contingency reserve (Note 15)

4,583,000  - - (4,583,000) -

 4,583,000 7,870,817 - (12,453,817)

Balance at 30 June 2016 7,925,000 12,271,325 - 9,883,536 30,079,861
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Replacement 
& Contingency 

Reserve 

Unexpended 
Grant 

Reserves 

Assets 
Revaluation 
Reserves 

Accumulated 
Funds 

Total 

COUNCIL $ $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2014 3,342,000 3,415,553 750,165 10,537,934 18,045,652

Net profit for the year - - - 1,323,680 1,323,680

Other Comprehensive Income - - - - -

Total Comprehensive Income - - - 1,323,680 1,323,680

Transaction with Owners in their capacity as 
owners

Expended grants from previous year (Note 14) - (2,305,409)  - 2,305,409 -

Prior year unexpended grants repaid during the 
year (Note 14)

 - (33,516) - 33,516 -

Revenues in current year not expended (Note 14) - 3,323,880 - (3,323,880) -

Transfer of realised asset revaluation reserves 
to accumulated surplus

- - (750,165) 750,165 -

Transfer of accumulated funds to replacement 
& contingency reserve (Note 15) 

- - - - -

 - 984,955 (750,165) (234,790) -

Balance at 30 June 2015 3,342,000 4,400,508 - 11,626,824 19,369,332

Net profit for the year - - - 10,585,409 10,585,409

Other Comprehensive Income - - - - -

Total Comprehensive Income - - - 10,585,409 10,585,409

Transaction with Owners in their capacity as 
owners

Expended grants from previous year (Note 14) - (3,079,922)  - 3,079,922 -

Prior year unexpended grants repaid during 
the year (Note 14)

- (471,303) - 471,303 -

Revenues in current year not expended (Note 14) - 11,422,042 - (11,422,042)  -

Transfer of realised asset revaluation reserves to 
accumulated surplus

- - - - -

Transfer of accumulated funds to replacement 
& contingency reserve (Note 15)

4,583,000 - - (4,583,000) -

 4,583,000 7,870,817 - (12,453,817)

Balance at 30 June 2016 7,925,000 12,271,325 - 9,758,416 29,954,741

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Consolidated Statement 
of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2016
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 Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

Note  $  $ $ $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES

Receipts:

Grants and contributions  33,140,536 24,461,835 33,079,161 24,660,529

Receipts from rates and annual charges 3,469,037 3,177,325 3,489,957 3,451,152

Other operating receipts 9,107,801 8,700,880 8,511,266 7,999,097

Interest received 709,801 532,003 669,120 532,003

Payments:

Payments to employees  (16,721,121) (16,396,615) (14,305,010) (15,919,533)

Payments to suppliers & customers  (19,419,654) (16,844,851) (20,792,340) (17,512,953)

Net cash from continuing operations 10,286,400 3,630,577 10,652,154 3,210,295

Net cash used in discontinued operations - - - -

Net cash provided by operating activities 12 10,286,400 3,630,577 10,652,154 3,210,295

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Receipts:

Proceeds from sale of assets  663,690 289,709 648,690 289,709

Cash Acquired on acquisition of business  - 1,265,083 - -

-Payments:

Acquisition of property, plant & equipment  (699,030) (415,254) (686,616) (387,754)

Security deposits  - - - -

Acquisition of shares in associates  - - - (350,000)

Net cash provided by investing activities  (35,340) 1,139,538 (37,926) (448,045)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES

Payment of commercial bill  (116,000) (232,000) (116,000) (232,000)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing 
activities

 (116,000) (232,000) (116,000) (232,000)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held  10,135,060 4,538,115 10,498,228 2,530,250

Cash at beginning of reporting period  18,736,554 14,198,439 16,721,617 14,191,367

Cash at end of reporting period 12 28,871,614 18,736,554 27,219,845 16,721,617

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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The East Arnhem Regional Council (the “Council” or “EARC”) was 
formed on 1 July 2008 as an amalgamation of nine communities:

•	 Galiwinku

•	 Gapuwiyak

•	 Marngarr

•	 Milingimbi

•	 Ramingining

•	 Yirrkala

•	 Umbakumba

•	 Angurugu

•	 Milyakburra

The purpose of this financial report is to provide users 
with information about the stewardship of the Council and 
accountability for the resources entrusted to it, information about 
the financial position, performance and cash flows of the Council.

This note sets out the principal accounting policies adopted in 
the preparation of the financial statements by Council as set out 
below.

The Local Government Reporting Entity

East Arnhem Regional Council is established under the Northern 
Territory Local Government Act and has its principal place of 
business on the corner of Chesterfield and Franklyn Streets, in 
Nhulunbuy, Northern Territory, Australia.

These financial statements include all businesses through which 
Council controls resources to carry on its functions. In the process 
of reporting on the Council as a single unit, all transactions and 
balances between functional areas and controlled entities have 
been eliminated. A summary of contributions to the operating 
result and net assets by function is provided at note 2(a).

Basis of Accounting

Statement of Compliance

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that 
has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations, the requirements of the Local 
Government Act, the Local Government (Accounting) Regulations, 
and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board. 

Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards

During the current year, the Council adopted all of the new and 
revised Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations which 
became mandatory for application and which were deemed to be 
applicable to its operations.

These standards and interpretations adopted had a minimal effect 
on the accounting and reporting practices of the Council as they 
did not have a significant impact on the accounting or reporting 
practices or were either not applicable, largely editorial in nature, 
were revisions to help ensure consistency with presentation, 
recognition and measurement criteria of IFRSs or related to topics 
not relevant to the Council’s operations.

Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted 

The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have 
recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective. The 
Council will apply these standards if there’s any relevance to its 
financial statements for the annual reporting periods beginning on 
or after the effective dates.

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2016
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Title Nature of Change / Impact Effective Date

(reporting periods on or after)

AASB 9 – Financial 
Instruments

Nil – The objective of this Standard is to improve and simplify the 
approach for classification and measurement of financial assets 
compared with the requirements of AASB 139. Given the nature of the 
financial assets of the Council, it is not anticipated the standard will 
have any material effect.

1 January 2018

AASB 15 Revenue from

Contracts with Customers

AASB 15 replaces AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 111 Construction 
Contracts and some revenue-related Interpretations. It:

•	 establishes a new revenue recognition model;

•	 changes the basis for deciding whether revenue is to be 
recognised over time or at a point in time;

•	 provides new and more detailed guidance on specific topics 
(e.g. multiple element arrangements, variable

•	 pricing, rights of return, warranties and licensing); and

•	 expands and improves disclosures about revenue.

In May 2015, the AASB issued ED 260 Income of Notfor-Profit 
Entities, proposing to replace the income recognition requirements 
of AASB 1004 Contributions and provide guidance to assist not-for-
profit entities to apply the principles of AASB 15. The ED was open 
for comment until 14 August 2015 and the AASB is currently in the 
process of redeliberating its proposals with the aim of releasing the 
final amendments in late 2016. The Council is yet to undertake a 
detailed assessment of the impact.

1 January 2018

AASB 16 Leases AASB 16:

•	 replaces AASB 117 Leases and some leaserelated 
Interpretations;

•	 requires all leases to be accounted for ‘on-balance sheet’ by 
lessees, other than short-term and low value asset leases;

•	 provides new guidance on the application of the definition of 
lease and on sale and lease back accounting;

•	 largely retains the existing lessor accounting requirements in 
AASB 117; and

•	 requires new and different disclosures about leases.

The entity is yet to undertake a detailed assessment of the impact of 
AASB 16. However, based on the entity’s preliminary assessment, 
the Standard is not expected to have a material impact on the 
transactions and balances recognised in the financial statements when 
it is first adopted for the year ending 30 June 2020.

1 January 2019

AASB 2015-6 Amendments 
to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Extending 
Related Party Disclosures 
to Not-for-Profit Public 
Sector Entities

The amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 Related Party 
Disclosures to include not-for-profit public sector entities. The key 
impact of the amendments is to specify consistent related party 
disclosure requirements for the Australian Government, State 
Governments, local councils and other not-for-profit public sector 
entities. 

When these amendments are first adopted for the year ending 30 
June 2017, there may be significant additional disclosures on the 
financial statements.

1 July 2016
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It is expected that there will be no material financial impact from 
the application of these standards as they are primarily disclosure 
related.

Significant accounting policies

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner 
which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies 
the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that 
the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is 
reported.

The accounting policies adopted for the reporting period are 
consistent with those of the previous reporting period except 
where otherwise indicated.

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in 
the preparation and presentation of the financial report:

a. Basis of preparation: 
 
The financial report has been prepared on the accrual 
basis and based on historical cost, except for the 
revaluation of certain non-current assets and financial 
instruments. Cost is based on the fair values of the 
consideration given in exchange for assets. All amounts 
are presented in Australian dollars, unless otherwise noted. 
The Council is a not-for profit entity for financial reporting 
purposes under Australian Accounting Standards. 
 
Principles of Consolidation 
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) 
over which the group has control. The group controls 
an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, 
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and 
has the ability to affect those returns through its power 
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully 
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred 
to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that 
control ceases. 
 
Where controlled entities have entered or left the Group 
during the year, the financial performance of those entities 
is included only for the period of the year that they were 
controlled. During the period, all subsidiary companies as 
noted in Note 9 (b), were dormant and deregister during 
this financial period. 
 
In July 2014, East Arnhem Regional Council acquired a 
controlling interest of Latitude 12 and own 100% of the 
entity. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all inter-
group balances and transactions between entities in the 
consolidated group have been eliminated on consolidation. 
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed 
where necessary to ensure consistency with those 
adopted by the parent entity. 
 
Non-controlling interests, being the equity in a subsidiary 
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent, are 
shown separately within the equity section of the 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and 
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income. The non-controlling interests in 
the net assets comprise their interest at the date of the 
original business combination and their share of changes 
in equity since that date.

b. Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or 
receivable. Revenue is measured on major income categories as 
follows:

i. Rates 
 
Rates are recognised as revenue when the Council 
obtains control over the asset comprising the receipt. 
Rates are an enforceable debt linked to rateable 
property that will be recovered when the property 
is next sold, where receipt is outstanding. As such, 
Council recognises rates income at the time of levying, 
or earlier upon receipt of rates paid in advance. The 
rating period and reporting period for the Council 
coincide and accordingly, all rates levied for the year 
are recognised as revenue. 
 
Uncollected rates are recognised as receivables. A 
provision is recognised when collection in full is no 
longer probable.

ii. Grants, donations and other contributions 
 
Grants, donations and other contributions are 
generally recognised as revenue when the Council 
obtains control over, or the right to receive, the assets, 
it is probable that future economic benefits comprising 
the asset will flow to the Council, and the amount can 
be reliably measured.  
 
Control over granted and contributed assets is 
normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) or 
upon notification that a grant has been secured, and is 
valued at their fair value at the date of transfer. 
 
Where grants, contributions and donations are 
recognised as revenue during the reporting period 
were obtained on the condition that they be expended 
in a particular manner or used over a particular period, 
and those conditions were undischarged as at the 
reporting date, the nature of and amounts pertaining 
to those undischarged conditions are disclosed in 
these notes.

iii. Disposal of property, plant and equipment 
 
The gain or loss on disposal of an asset is determined 
when control of the asset has passed from the Council 
and can be measured reliably.

iv. Interest revenue  
 
Interest is recognised as it accrues, when it is probable 
that the future economic benefits will flow to the 
Council and it can be measured reliably.

v. User charges and service fee revenue 
 
User Charges and Service Fee revenue is recognised 
when the outcome of such transactions can be 
estimated reliably.

c. Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits 
held at call with financial institutions, other short term, 
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

d. Financial Instruments: 
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A financial instrument is recognised if the Council and its 
wholly owned entity becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are 
recognised at trade date (less impairment). Financial assets 
are derecognised if the Council and its wholly owned 
entity transfer the financial asset to another party without 
retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the 
asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the Council 
and its wholly owned entity’s obligations specified in the 
contract expire or are discharged or cancelled. 
 
Financial Assets 
 
The Council and its wholly owned entity classify its 
financial assets as loans and receivables. The classification 
depends on the purpose for which the financial instrument 
was acquired. The Council and its wholly owned entity 
determine the classification of its financial instruments at 
initial recognition and reevaluate this designation at each 
reporting date. 
 
Loans and Receivables 
 
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have 
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. 
Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate method less impairment. 
 
Effective Interest Method 
 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating 
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating 
interest income over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or 
received that form an integral part of the effective interest 
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) 
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where 
appropriate, a shorter period. 
 
Impairment of Financial Assets 
 
Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment 
at each Consolidated Statement of Financial Position date. 
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective 
evidence that as a result of one or more events that 
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets 
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have 
been impacted. 
 
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount 
of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated 
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective 
interest rate. 
 
The carrying amount of financial assets including 
uncollectible trade receivables is reduced by the 
impairment loss through the use of an allowance account. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off 
are credited against an allowance account. Changes in the 
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised 
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other 
Comprehensive Income. 
 
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment 
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, 
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed 
through profit or loss to the extent the carrying amount of 

the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does 
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had 
the impairment not been recognised. 
 
Derecognition of Financial Assets 
 
The Council and its wholly owned entity derecognises 
a financial asset only when the contractual rights to 
the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers 
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If 
the Council neither transfers nor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to 
control the transferred asset, the Council and its wholly 
owned entity recognises its retained interest in the asset 
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to 
pay. If the Council retains substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the 
Council continues to recognise the financial asset and 
also recognises a collaterised borrowing for the proceeds 
received. 
 
Financial Liabilities 
 
The Council and its wholly owned entity classify its financial 
liabilities as other financial liabilities. This classification 
pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for trading 
or not designated as at FVPL (Fair Value through Profit 
& Loss) upon inception of the liability. The classification 
depends on the purpose for which the financial liability 
was incurred. The Council and its wholly owned entity 
determine the classification of its financial liability at initial 
recognition and re-evaluates this designation at each 
reporting date. 
 
Trade and other payables 
 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services 
provided to the Council and its wholly owned entity prior 
to the end of the financial year which remain unpaid. The 
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 
days of recognition. 
 
Borrowings 
 
Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, net of 
transaction costs. Borrowings are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with 
interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. 
 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating 
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating 
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated 
future cash payments through the expected life of the 
financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

e. Inventory: 
 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value. Costs are assigned to inventory based on 
the weighted-average purchase cost of bringing each item 
to its present location and condition. Net realisable value 
represents the amount expected to be realised from the 
use of inventory. 

f. Investments 
 
Investments in Subsidiary 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, investments in 
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subsidiary companies are measured at cost in the East 
Arnhem Regional Council’s financial statements less any 
impairment in value.

g. Property, Plant and Equipment: 
 
a. Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 
(including structural assets) 
 
Property, plant and equipment is recognised at cost when 
control of the asset passes to the Council and its wholly 
owned entity. Cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition. Cost related to property, 
plant and equipment gifted, donated or granted to the 
Council and its wholly owned entity is the fair value of the 
asset, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. 
The Council and its wholly owned entity recognises assets 
over the value of $5,000. 
 
From the creation of the Council on 1 July 2008, all land, 
buildings and infrastructure that were not under the 
financial control of the Council were written off. All assets 
that were transferred under $5,000 from the communities 
were also written off or expensed. 
 
b. Depreciation 
 
All property, plant and equipment, with the exception of 
land, is systematically depreciated over its useful life in 
a manner which reflects the consumption of the service 
potential embodied in those assets from the time that the 
item of property plant and equipment is available for use. 
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation 
method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting 
period, with the effect of any changes recognised on 
a prospective basis. Depreciation is provided for on a 
straight line method using lives which are reviewed each 
reporting period. Major depreciation periods are: 
 
Buildings / Other Structures 10 to 70 years 
 
Plant and Equipment /  
Motor Vehicles /  
Office Furniture and Equipment 3 to 11 years 
 
c. Valuation 
 
Revaluation increments and decrements 
 
Revaluation increments and decrements arising from 
recognising assets at valuation are offset against one 
another within the class of assets. Net revaluation 
increments in the carrying amounts of these assets are 
recognised directly in the other comprehensive income 
(asset revaluation reserve), except to the extent that the 
increment reverses a decrement that was previously 
recognised as an expense in the net profit or loss in 
respect of the same class of assets, in which case the 
increment is recognised as revenue in the net profit or loss. 
 
Net revaluation decrements in carrying amounts are 
recognised as an expense in the net profit or loss, except 
to the extent that the decrement reverses a previous 
revaluation increment in respect of the same class of 
assets credited directly to the other comprehensive 
income, in which case the decrement is debited directly to 
other comprehensive income (asset revaluation reserve). 
 
During the prior year the Council has amended its policy of 
revaluation of Motor Vehicles so that these assets are now 
held at cost less depreciation. This has had no impact on 

the financial statements. 
 
Impairment of assets 
 
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to 
amortisation and are tested for impairment annually. 
 
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 
 
If such an indication exists and where the carrying value 
exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are 
written down to their recoverable amount. 
 
The recoverable amount of plant and equipment is the 
greater of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
 
For non cash generating assets of the Council such 
as roads, cycle paths and public buildings, fair value is 
represented by the depreciated optimised replacement 
cost. Impairment losses are recognised in the surplus or 
deficit. 
 
d. Land under Roads 
 
Council has elected not to value or recognise as an 
asset land under roads acquired prior to 1 July 2008 in 
accordance with the election available under AASB 1051 
Land under Roads.

h. Employee Benefits: 
 
Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in 
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service 
leave when it is probable that settlement will be required and 
they are capable of being measured reliably. 
 
a. Employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 
months 
 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary 
benefits expected to be settled wholly within 12 months 
after the end of the period in which the employees render 
the related services are recognised in respect of employees’ 
services up to the end of the reporting period and are 
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled. All other short-term employee benefit 
obligations are presented as payables. 
 
b. Employee benefits not expected to be settled within 12 
months  
 
The liability for long service leave and annual leave which 
is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after 
the end of the period in which the employees render the 
related service is therefore recognised in the provision for 
employee benefits and measured as the present value of 
expected future payments to be made in respect of services 
provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period 
using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is 
given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience 
of employee departures and periods of service. Expected 
future payments are discounted using market yields at 
the end of the reporting period of government bonds with 
terms and currency that match, as closely as possible, the 
estimated future cash outflows. Remeasurements as a 



44 East Arnhem Regional Council | Annual Report: Financials

result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. 
 
The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the 
consolidated balance sheet if the entity does not have an 
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve 
months after the reporting date, regardless of when the 
actual settlement is expected to occur. 
 
c. Defined contribution plans 
 
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans 
are expensed when employees have rendered service 
entitling them to the contributions. The Council contributes 
in respect of its employees to a defined contribution 
superannuation plan (Local Government Superannuation 
Scheme) established in respect of certain municipalities in 
South Australia and the Northern Territory.

i. Budget Information: 
 
Note 2(a) provides budget information of revenues and 
expenditure of each of the major activities of the Council. 
Budget figures represented are those approved by the 
Council at the beginning of the financial year.

j. Tax Status: 
 
The operations of East Arnhem Regional Council and 
Latitude 12 Pty Ltd are tax exempt under the provisions of 
the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 
 
Region C Pty Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary, is limited 
by guarantee under the Corporations Act 2001 and is 
assessable for income tax by the Australian Taxation 
Office in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax 
Assessment Act 1997. This company was dormant and 
deregistered during the period.  
 
The income tax expense (revenue) for the year comprises 
current income tax expense (income) and deferred 
tax expense (income). Income tax expense comprises 
current and deferred tax. Current and deferred taxes are 
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it 
relates to a business combination, or items recognised 
directly in equity. 
 
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on 
the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, 
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous 
years. 
 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the 
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not 
recognised for the following temporary differences: initial 
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not 
a business combination and that affects neither accounting 
nor taxable profits or loss, and differences relating to 
investments in subsidiaries and associates and jointly 
controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they 
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is 
measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied 
to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the 
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes 
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, 

or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current 
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets 
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 
 
A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, 
tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred 
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the 
related tax benefit will be realised.

k. Provisions: 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Council and its 
wholly owned entity has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that 
the Council and its wholly owned entity will be required to 
settle the obligation, and reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. 
 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate 
of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks 
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a 
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to 
settle the present obligation, the carrying amount is the 
present value of those cash flows. 
 
When some or all of the economic benefits required to 
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 
third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is 
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the 
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

l. Goods and Services Tax: 
 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the 
amount of goods and services tax (GST), except: 
 
a. where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable 
from the taxation authority, it is recognised as part of the 
cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of 
expense; 
 
or 
 
b. for receivables and payables which are recognised 
inclusive of GST, the net amount recoverable from, or 
payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 
receivables or payables.  
 
Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows 
on a gross basis. The GST component of cashflows arising 
from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable 
from or payable to the taxation authority, is classified as 
operating cash flows.

m. Rounding of Amounts: 
 
Amounts in the financial statements are presented in 
Australian dollars and have been rounded off to the nearest 
dollar.

n. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty: 
 
No accounting assumptions or estimates have been 
identified that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next accounting period.
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o. Economic Dependence 
During the year the Council received grants from the 
Northern Territory and Australian Government. The future 
operation of the Council is dependent upon continued 
government funding.

p. Comparative Figures: 
 
Where required by currently applicable Australian 
Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been 
adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for 
the current financial year. In addition, certain prior year 
comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to 
the current year’s presentation.

q. Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations: 
 
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified 
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through 
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only 
when the sale is highly probable and the non-current 
asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in 
its present condition. Council must be committed to the 
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition 
as a completed sale within one year from the date of 
classification.

r. Business combinations 
 
The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting 
for business combinations. The consideration transferred 
by the Group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated 
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets 
transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests 
issued by the Group, which includes the fair value of any 
asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration 
arrangement. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.  
 
The Group recognises identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless 
of whether they have been previously recognised in the 
acquiree’s financial statements prior to the acquisition. 
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally 
measured at their acquisition-date fair values. 
 
Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable 
intangible assets. It is calculated as the excess of the 
sum of: (a) fair value of consideration transferred, (b) the 
recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in the 
acquire, and (c) acquisition-date fair value of any existing 
equity interest in the acquiree, over the acquisition-date 
fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair values of 
identifiable net assets exceed the sum calculated above, 
the excess amount (ie gain on a bargain purchase) is 
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

s. Goodwill 
 
Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising 
from a business combination that are not individually 
identified and separately recognised. Goodwill is carried at 
cost less accumulated impairment losses. 
 
For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped 
at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent 
cash inflows (cash-generating units). As a result, some 
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are 
tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated 
to those cashgenerating units that are expected to benefit 
from synergies of the related business combination and 

represent the lowest level within the Group at which 
management monitors goodwill. 
 
Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been 
allocated (determined by the Group’s management 
as equivalent to its operating segments) are tested for 
impairment at least annually. 
 
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which 
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of fair 
value less costs to sell and value-in-use. 
 
Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first 
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that cash-
generating unit. Any remaining impairment loss is charged 
pro rata to the other assets in the cash-generating unit. 
 
 



46 East Arnhem Regional Council | Annual Report: Financials

2 (a). Components of Functions
2016 - Revenues, expenses and assets have been attributed 
to the following functions/activities. Details of those functions/
activities are provided at note 2(b). The Council deemed that it is 
not practicable to disclose assets allocation by functions.

10 - GENERAL PUBLIC SERVICE 20 - PUBLIC ORDER AND SAFETY

ACTUALS BUDGET VARIANCE ACTUALS BUDGET VARIANCE

$ $ $ $ $ $

Revenue

Grants (10,294,557) (10,384,819) 90,262 (3,414,526)  (3,233,044) (181,482)

Rates/Charges (1,804,070)  (1,600,000) (204,070) - - -

Sundry Income (1,026,590) (1,044,688) 18,098 (125,582) (426,638) 301,056

Cash Investments (666,121) (440,000) (226,121) - - -

Cash Contribution (600,025) - (600,025) (9,586) - (9,586)

Income Reimbursements (124,944) - (124,944) (8,396) - (8,396)

Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - - - - -

Revenue Carried Forward (1,147,288) (1,158,288) 11,000 (258,902) (258,902) -

 (15,663,595) (14,627,795) (1,035,800) (3,816,992)  (3,918,584) 101,592

Operating Expenses

Salary Expenses 5,275,555 5,763,660 (488,105) 2,020,963 2,440,831 (419,868)

Materials/Contractors 5,053,998 5,529,180 (475,182) 169,250 65,318 103,932

General Expenses 2,244,864 2,138,210 106,654 408,535 717,583 (309,048)

Finance Expense 813,062 506,338 306,724 52,870 17,990 34,880

Asset Expense 107,999 171,285 (63,286) 3,596 0 3,596

 13,495,478 14,108,673 (613,195) 2,655,214 3,241,722 (586,508)

Capitalised Expenditures

Infrastructure - - - -  - -

Plant and Equipment - - - -  - -

Equipment - - - -  - -

Motor Vehicles - - - -  - -

 - - - -  - -

Reclassifications

Cost Allocation (530,371) 55,196 (585,567) 9,767 275,082 (265,315)

Asset Maintenance 3,104,344 3,184,637 (80,293) 176,809 197,362 (20,553)

Revenue Allocations 4,264,985 4,045,261 219,724 (1,146,359) (883,391) (262,968)

Support Service Allocations (6,882,949) (7,051,286) 168,337 1,335,748 1,492,112 (156,364)

 (43,991)  233,808 (277,799) 375,965 1,081,165 (705,200)

Net Operating (Profit) Loss (2,212,108) (285,314) (1,926,794) (785,813) 404,303 (1,190,116)

Depreciation expense  - - - - - -

Net (Profit) Loss (2,212,108) (285,314) (1,926,794) (785,813) 404,303 (1,190,116)
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30 - ECONOMIC AFFAIRS 40 - ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

ACTUALS BUDGET VARIANCE ACTUALS BUDGET VARIANCE

$ $ $ $ $ $

Revenue

Grants (9,288,520) (1,149,730) (8,138,790) (24,000) - (24,000)

Rates/Charges  - - - (1,742,695) (1,754,000) 11,305

Sundry Income (1,409,388) (1,739,131) 329,743 (452,088) (234,932) (217,156)

Cash Investments - - - - - -

Cash Contribution - - - - - -

Income Reimbursements (1,126,299) (3,000) (1,123,299) (54,391) (1,177) (53,214)

Proceeds from Sale of Assets (720,391) (360,000) (360,391) - - -

Revenue Carried Forward (804,280) (804,280) - - - -

(13,348,878) (4,056,141) (9,292,737) (2,273,174) (1,990,109) (283,065)

Operating Expenses

Salary Expenses 535,266 634,902 (99,636) 346,661 298,211 48,450

Materials/Contractors 4,145,789 2,205,035 1,940,754 105,851 116,504 (10,653)

General Expenses 1,440,762 1,426,756 14,006 570,134 510,000 60,134

Finance Expense 110,175 151,700 (41,525) 65,547 100 65,447

Asset Expense 1,570,907 1,447,000 123,907 2,403 0 2,403

 7,802,899 5,865,393 1,937,506 1,090,596 924,815 165,781

Capitalised Expenditures

Infrastructure - - - - - -

Plant 253,300 664,265 (410,965) - - -

Equipment 13,445 - 13,445 9,267 - 9,267

Motor Vehicles 389,364 - 389,364 9,091 - 9,091

 656,109 664,265 (8,156) 18,358 - 18,358

Reclassifications

Cost Allocation 230,873 1,064,769 (833,896) 258,302 281,699 (23,397)

Asset Maintenance (1,793,804) (1,855,411) 61,607 357,106 382,676 (25,570)

Revenue Allocations (2,344,745) (2,196,450) (148,295) - 47,885 (47,885)

Support Service Allocations 2,137,846 2,138,989 (1,143) 349,944 348,903 1,041

 (1,769,830) (848,103) (921,727) 965,352 1,061,163 (95,811)

Net Operating (Profit) Loss (6,659,700) 1,625,414 (8,285,114) (198,868) (4,131) (194,737)

Depreciation expenses (1,047,460) (1,405,000) 357,540 - - -

Net (Profit) Loss (7,707,160) 220,414 (7,927,574) (198,868) (4,131) (194,737)
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50 - HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AMENITIES 60 - HEALTH

ACTUALS BUDGET VARIANCE ACTUALS BUDGET VARIANCE

$ $ $ $ $ $

Revenue

Grants (1,280,003) - (1,280,003) - - -

Rates/Charges - - -  - - -

Sundry Income (1,616,163) (1,777,916) 161,753 - - -

Cash Investments - - -  - - -

Cash Contribution - - -  - - -

Income Reimbursements (473,136) - (473,136) - - -

Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - - - - -

Revenue Carried Forward (714,936) (714,936  - - -

 (4,084,238) (2,492,852) (1,591,386) - - -

Operating Expenses

Salary Expenses 1,021,163 1,469,564 (448,401) - - -

Materials/Contractors 1,626,047 3,063,602 (1,437,555) - - -

General Expenses 1,325,936 1,126,958 198,978 - - -

Finance Expense 503,269 449,000 54,269 - - -

Asset Expense 188,962 84,052 104,910 - - -

 4,665,377 6,193,176 (1,527,799) - - -

Capitalised Expenditures

Infrastructure - - - - - -

Plant - - - - - -

Equipment 12,150 - 12,150 - - -

Motor Vehicles - - - - - -

 12,150 - 12,150 - - -

Reclassifications

Cost Allocation 17,383 478,145 (460,762) - - -

Asset Maintenance (3,956,127) (4,006,838) 50,711 - - -

Revenue Allocations - (239,424) 239,424 - - -

Support Service Allocations 60,342 67,793 (7,451) - - -

 (3,878,402) (3,700,324) (178,078) - - -

Net Operating (Profit) Loss (3,285,113) - (3,285,113) - - -

- - -

Depreciation expenses (38,360) (49,150) 10,790 - - -

Net (Profit) Loss (3,323,473) (49,150) (3,274,323) - - -

2 (a). Components of Functions 
(cont.)



49East Arnhem Regional Council | Annual Report: Financials

70 - RECREATION, CULTURE AND RELIGION 80 - EDUCATION

ACTUALS BUDGET VARIANCE ACTUALS BUDGET VARIANCE

$ $ $ $ $ $

Revenue

Grants (3,928,507) (3,780,152) (148,355) - - -

Rates/Charges - - - - - -

Sundry Income (152,473) (218,595) 66,122 - - -

Cash Investments - - - - - -

Cash Contribution - - - - - -

Income Reimbursements (22,906) - (22,906) - - -

Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - - - - -

Revenue Carried Forward (71,294) (60,294) (11,000) - - -

 (4,175,180) (4,059,041) (116,139) - - -

Operating Expenses

Salary Expenses 1,849,939 1,909,393 (59,454) - - -

Materials/Contractors 261,402 148,759 112,633 - - -

General Expenses 411,885 304,380 107,505 - - -

Finance Expense 13,476 0 13,476 - - -

Asset Expense 21,794 7,000 14,794 - - -

 2,558,496 2,369,532 188,964 - - -

Capitalised Expenditures

Infrastructure - - - - - -

Plant and Equipment - - - - - -

Equipment - - - - - -

Motor Vehicles - - - - - -

- - - - - -

Reclassifications

Cost Allocation 4,411 60,294 (55,883) - - -

Asset Maintenance 993,526 995,168 (1,642) - - -

Revenue Allocations (773,881) (773,881) - - - -

Support Service Allocations 1,437,988 1,437,925 63 - - -

 1,662,044 1,719,506 (57,462) - - -

Net Operating (Profit) Loss 45,360 29,997 15,363 -  - -

Depreciation expenses - - - - - -

Net (Profit) Loss 45,360 29,997 15,363 - - -



50 East Arnhem Regional Council | Annual Report: Financials



51East Arnhem Regional Council | Annual Report: Financials

90 - SOCIAL PROTECTION TOTAL

ACTUALS BUDGET VARIANCE ACTUALS BUDGET VARIANCE

$ $ $ $ $ $

Revenue

Grants (4,701,075) (4,489,780) (211,295) (32,931,188) (23,037,525) (9,893,663)

Rates/Charges - - - (3,546,765) (3,354,000) (192,765)

Sundry Income (2,177,713) (3,611,398) 1,433,685 (6,959,997) (9,053,298) 2,093,301

Cash Investments - - - (666,121) (440,000) (226,121)

Cash Contribution - - - (609,611) - (609,611)

Income Reimbursements (43,255) - (43,255) (1,853,327) (4,177) (1,849,150)

Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - - (720,391) (360,000) (360,391)

Revenue Carried Forward (1,403,809) (1,403,809) - (4,400,509) (4,400,509) -

 (8,325,852) (9,504,987) 1,179,135 (51,687,909) (40,649,509) (11,038,400)

Operating Expenses

Salary Expenses 3,120,655 3,656,121 (535,466) 14,170,202 16,172,682 (2,002,480)

Materials/Contractors 526,169 905,847 (379,678) 11,888,506 12,034,245 (145,739)

General Expenses 637,496 1,291,769 (654,273) 7,039,612 7,515,656 (476,044)

Finance Expense 137,030 27,300 109,730 1,695,429 1,152,428 543,001

Asset Expense 12,582 170,914 (158,332) 1,908,243 1,880,251 27,992

 4,433,932 6,051,951 (1,618,019) 36,701,992 38,755,262 (2,053,270)

Capitalised Expenditures

Infrastructure - - - - - -

Plant and Equipment - - - 253,300 664,265 (410,965)

Equipment - - - 34,862 0 34,862

Motor Vehicles - - - 398,455 0 398,455

 - - - 686,617 664,265 22,352

Reclassifications

Cost Allocation 9,635 847,909 (838,274) - 3,063,094 (3,063,094)

Asset Maintenance 1,118,146 1,102,406 15,740 - - -

Revenue Allocations - - - - - -

Support Service Allocations 1,561,081 1,565,564 (4,483) - - -

 2,688,862 3,515,879 (827,017) - 3,063,094 (3,063,094)

Net Operating (Profit) Loss (1,203,058) 62,843 (1,265,901) (14,299,300) 1,833,112 (16,132,412)

Depreciation expenses - - - (1,085,820) (1,454,150) 368,330

Net (Profit) Loss (1,203,058) 62,843 (1,265,901) (15,385,120) 378,962 (15,764,082)

2 (a). Components of Functions (cont.)

Reconciliation of Statement of Comprehensive income

Net Profit Per Function Schedule (15,385,120)

Less  

Unexpended grant carried 
forward

(4,400,508)

Capital expenditures (Note 10b) 686,617

Profit on disposal of assets – 
Depreciation

(1,085,820)

Minor other items -

Net Profit for the Year  (10,585,409)
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2 (b). Components of functions
The activities relating to the Council functions reported on in Note 
2(a) are as follows:

General Public Services

Administrative, legislative and executive affairs, financial and 
fiscal affairs, general research and general services. Also 
includes where applicable Natural Disaster Relief.

Public Order and Safety

Fire protection, local emergency services, animal control and 
impounding, control of public places, control of signs, boarding 
and advertising, community policing and probationary matters.

Economic Affairs

General economic, agriculture and forestry, fuel and energy, 
other labour and employment affairs, transport and other 
industries, saleyards and tourism.

Environmental Protection

Waste management, pollution reduction, protection of 
biodiversity and landscape and protection and remediation of 
soil, groundwater and surface water.

Housing and Community Amenities

Housing, housing and community development, water supply 
and street lighting.

Health

Well baby clinics, dental health services and home nursing 
services, nursing and convalescent home services, 
immunisation, infant nutrition and child health, and family 
planning services.

Recreation, Culture And Religion

Facilities and venues, recreation parks and reserves, cultural 
and religious services, museums and libraries.

Education

Administration, inspection, support, operation, etc. of education 
programs and services.

Social Protection

Outlays on day care services, family day care, occasional 
care and outside schools hour care, aged services, shelter 
protection, drug and alcohol treatment programs. Also includes 
relief from man-made disasters.
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3. Operating revenues  Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $

(a) Grants

NT Local Government Operational Grants 21,907,867 13,435,457 21,907,867 13,332,986

Commonwealth Government Operational Grants 10,607,200 11,135,677 10,607,200 11,135,677

Other Grants Operational 416,122 407,184 416,122 407,184

Total Grants 32,931,189 24,978,318 32,931,189 24,875,847

(b) User Charges and Fees

Cleaning/House Repairs - - - -

Administration Fee 2,830 317,655 2,830 317,655

Staff Rental Income  962,006 846,928 962,006 846,928

Indigenous Wage Subsidies 1,142,570 1,147,373 1,142,570 1,147,373

Medicare Subsidies 1,575,834 1,990,715 1,575,834 1,990,715

Accommodation Income 435,324 378,229 435,324 378,229

Meals Income 501,554 472,277 501,554 472,277

Equipment Hire 88,665 66,527 88,665 66,527

Child Care Fees 68,206 75,134 68,206 75,134

Workshop Services 23,936 14,812 23,936 14,812

Shops and Merchandise 5,757 4,261 5,757 4,261

Other Statutory Charge Income - 3,930 - 3,930

Other 407,094 110,185 407,094 110,185

Total User Charges and Fees 5,213,776 5,428,026 5,213,776 5,428,026

(c) Rates and Annual Charges

General Rate Income Base 1,804,070 1,391,101 1,804,070 1,391,101

Specific Rate Income Fines - - - -

Waste Management Service 1,742,695 1,677,021 1,742,695 1,677,021

Total Rates and Annual Charges 3,546,765 3,068,122 3,546,765 3,068,122

(d) Other Operating Revenue

Contract Income 699,800 904,947 699,800 904,947

Diesel Fuel Income 600,435 717,161 600,435 717,161

Other service Income 265,147 274,337 265,147 274,337

Income Insurance Claims 695,736 253,686 695,736 253,686

Opal Fuel Income 176,490 170,633 176,490 170,633

Work Cover Claims 71,918 15,856 71,918 15,856

Cash Donation and Gift Income 9,611 500 9,611 500

Cash Sponsorship Income - - - -

Cash from Fundraising/Festival  - - - -

Cash from Reimbursement from NT Local Government 1,063,250 - 1,063,250 -

Service and Project Fee Income 1,157,915 918,390   

Other Revenue 123,444 17,293 695,476 119,779

Total Other Operating Revenue 4,863,746 3,272,803 4,277,863 2,456,899

(e) Interests

Interest on Bank Accounts 704,823 523,992 666,121 523,992

Interest on Receivables 4,977 8,011 2,999 8,011

Total Interests 709,800 532,003 669,120 532,003
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4. Operating Expenses  Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $

(a) Employee Costs

Salaries and Wages 12,704,563 12,000,713 10,902,275 11,251,444

Employee Leave Benefits 2,302,698 1,962,465 2,019,043 1,962,465

Superannuation 1,372,221 1,153,627 1,163,522 1,153,627

Workers Compensation Insurance 97,504 26,849 87,044 26,849

Fringe Benefits Tax 64,813 56,704 59,807 56,704

Total Employee Costs 16,541,799 15,200,358 14,231,691 14,451,089

(b) Material and Contractors

Contractors 6,112,625 8,408,049 8,195,175 8,408,049

Materials 2,251,255 1,437,118 2,251,255 1,437,118

Consultants 1,307,062 970,718 1,313,730 970,718

Accounting / Audit Expenses 171,659 62,728 171,659 62,728

Total Material and Contractor Charges 9,842,601 10,878,613 11,931,819 10,878,613

(c) Depreciation and Amortisation

Motor Vehicles 522,300 617,922 492,131 625,710

Plant 495,961 625,710 520,077 559,588

Equipment 35,252 92,880 35,252 92,880

Buildings 29,963 34,283 29,962 34,283

Infrastructure 6,834 6,834 6,833 6,834

Furniture and Fittings 8,435 1,976 1,565 1,975

Intangibles 8,225 8,300 - -

Total Depreciation and Amortisation 1,106,968 1,387,905 1,085,820 1,321,270

(d) Other Operating Expenses

Insurance 739,349 700,793 718,052 700,793

Travel and Accommodation 1,074,900 1,089,713 1,046,258 1,089,713

Communication 389,658 847,946 350,192 847,946

Fuel 706,470 798,634 706,470 798,634

Lease 1,180,871 990,380 1,066,350 990,380

Utility 344,759  627,640 339,528 627,640

Vehicles 651,909 403,959 651,909 403,959

Training 374,233 216,615 357,365 216,615

Bad Debts expense 316,423 507,174 282,039 507,174

Staff Expenses 618,744 395,365 517,831 395,365

Sitting fees 366,008 353,350 366,308 353,350

Asset Expenses 412,394 114,403 306,420 114,403

Grants repayment 474,395 33,516 474,395 33,516

Printing and Stationery 80,551 66,713 73,176 66,713

Interest Expense 114,817 120,911 114,817 120,911

Rental Plant & Equipment 130,131 418,120 128,550 418,120

Advertising 36,302 21,639 18,029 21,639

Bank Fees and Charges 45,629 48,507 44,847 48,507

Other Expenses 1,645,294 726,368 1,391,587 726,368

Total Other Operating Expenses 9,702,839 8,481,746 8,954,123 8,481,746
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5. Gain Or Loss On Disposal Of 
Assets

 Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

$ $ $ $

Equipment Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

Proceeds from Sale - - - -

Written Down Value - - - -

Gain/(Loss) on disposal - - - -

Motor Vehicle Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

Proceeds from Sale 272,162 207,295 272,162 207,295

Written Down Value (16,671) (29,316) (16,671) (29,316)

Gain on disposal 255,491 187,133 255,491 187,133

Loss on disposal - (9,154) - (9,154)

Intangibles Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

Proceeds from Sale 15,000 - - -

Written Down Value (26,435) - - -

Gain on disposal - - - -

Loss on disposal (11,435) - - -

Plant Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

Proceeds from Sale 376,528 82,414 376,529 82,414

Written Down Value (481,871) (164,892) (481,871) (164,892)

Gain on disposal - 32,345 - 32,345

Loss on disposal (105,342) (114,823) (105,342) (114,823)

Total Gain on Disposal of Assets 255,491 219,478 255,491 219,478

Total Loss on Disposal of Assets (116,777) (123,977) (105,342) (123,977)

6. Cash And Cash Equivalents  Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

 $  $ $ $

Cash at Bank 1,075,518 5,235,654 450,839 3,220,717

Short Term Deposits 27,795,506 13,500,400 26,768,506 13,500,400

Petty Cash 590 500 500 500

Total Cash and cash equivalents 28,871,614 18,736,554 27,219,845 16,721,617

RESTRICTED CASH SUMMARY

Purpose:

External Restrictions

- Included in assets - - - -

Total External Restrictions - - - -

Internal Restrictions

- Included in liabilities 318,248 107,901 65,106 107,901

- Included in reserves 20,196,325 7,742,508 20,196,325 7,742,508

Total Internal Restrictions 20,514,573 7,850,409 20,261,431 7,850,409

Total Unrestricted 8,357,041 10,886,145 6,958,414 8,871,208

TOTAL CASH AVAILABLE 28,871,614 18,736,554 27,219,845 16,721,617
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7. Trade and Other Receivables  Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

 $  $ $ $

Rates and Annual Charges (non-current) 848,640 731,516 848,640 731,516

User Charges and Fees 680,522 375,645 161,389 410,557

Other 864,360 372,679 1,148,557 80,000

Subtotal 2,393,522 1,479,840 2,158,586 1,222,073

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts (838,699) (562,366) (807,326) (562,366)

Total Trade and Other Receivables 1,554,823 917,474 1,351,260 659,707

Total Trade and Other Receivables consist of:

Current 1,554,823 678,779 1,351,260 434,477

Non-Current - 238,695 - 225,230

Total Trade and Other Receivables 1,554,823 917,474 1,351,260 659,707

(a) Ageing of Trade Receivables:

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are 
generally on 14 day terms.

The ageing of trade receivables is detailed below:

Not past due 943,203 615,845 748,108 358,078

Past due 31-60 days 83,145 84,725 68,329 84,725

Past due 61-90 days 36,553 4,027 35,308 4,027

Past due 91+ days 1,330,621 775,243 1,306,840 775,243

Total 2,393,522 1,479,840 2,158,585 1,222,073

(b) Past due but not impaired receivables

As at 30 June 2016, current receivables of the Council 
with a nominal value of $772,108 (2015: $301,629) were 
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of 
customers for whom there is no history of default.

The ageing of these receivable is as follows:

Past due 31-60 days 77,002 84,573 68,329 84,573

Past due 61-90 days 35,308 3,870 35,308 3,870

Past due 91+ days 659,798 213,186 660,198 213,186

Total 772,108 301,629 763,835 301,629

(c) Impaired receivables:

As at 30 June 2016 receivables with a nominal value of 
$838,699 (2015: $562,366) were impaired.

The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

Not past due 160,488 - 160,684 -

Past due 31-60 days 6,143 152 - 152

Past due 61-90 days 1,245 157 - 157

Past due 91+ days 670,823 562,057 646,642 562,057

Total 838,699 562,366 807,326 562,366

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at the beginning of the year 562,366 65,523 562,366 65,523

Impairment losses provided on receivables 316,240 532,510 284,867 532,510

Amounts written off during the year as uncollectable (39,907) (35,667) (39,907) (35,667)

Impairment losses reversed  -  -

Balance at end of the year 838,699 562,366 807,326 562,366
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8. Unrestricted Other Assets  Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

 $  $ $ $

(a) Other Assets

Accrued Revenue 198,999 113,164 198,999 113,164

Prepayments 69,821 85,841 59,996 85,841

Bonds 21,210 17,610 21,210 17,610

Other 82,544 210,254 62,282 210,254

Total Other Assets 372,574 426,869 342,487 426,869

(b) Other Assets

Security deposit for commercial 643,786 643,786 643,786 643,786

Security deposit for corporate card 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

Total Other Assets 843,786 843,786 843,786 843,786

9. Investments In Subsidiaries  Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

 $  $ $ $

(a) Investment in subsidiary

Latitude 12 Pty Ltd - - 1,092,830 1,092,830

Total - - 1,092,830 1,092,830

* Refer to Note 17 for details

(b) Investments in Associates

CouncilBiz - - - -

East Arnhem Pty Ltd 1 - 1 - 1

East Arnhem Pty Ltd 2 - 1 - 1

East Arnhem Pty Ltd 3 - 1 - 1

East Arnhem Pty Ltd 4 - 1 - 1

East Arnhem Pty Ltd 5 - 1 - 1

Total - 5 - 5

Total Investments In Associates - 5 1,092,830 1,092,835
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10. Property Plant And Equipment  Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

 $  $ $ $

Buildings

At Cost 2,575,544 2,575,544 2,575,544 2,575,544

Accumulated Depreciation (366,958) (336,996) (366,958) (336,996)

Impairment (1,483,881) (1,483,881) (1,483,881) (1,483,881)

Written Down Value – Buildings 724,705 754,667 724,705 754,667

Infrastructure

At Cost 136,674 136,674 136,674 136,674

Accumulated Depreciation (46,097) (39,264) (46,097) (39,264)

Written Down Value – Infrastructure 90,577 97,410 90,577 97,410

Equipment

At Cost 1,061,388 1,010,650 992,959 1,010,650

Accumulated Depreciation (864,676) (774,928) (810,180) (774,928)

Written Down Value – Equipment 196,712 235,722 182,779 235,722

Plant

At Cost 4,787,217 5,670,592 4,787,215 5,612,029

Accumulated Depreciation (2,269,930) (2,398,647) (2,269,930) (2,398,647)

Written Down Value – Plant 2,517,287 3,271,945 2,517,285 3,213,382

Furniture and Fittings

At Cost 85,023 45,873 45,873 45,873

Accumulated Depreciation (65,398) (35,857) (37,422) (35,857)

Written Down Value - Furniture and Fittings 19,625 10,016 8,451 10,016

Motor Vehicles

At Cost 5,177,793 5,430,913 5,177,793 5,430,913

Accumulated Depreciation (4,206,811) (4,349,584) (4,206,811) (4,349,584)

Written Down Value - Motor Vehicles 970,982 1,081,329 970,982 1,081,329

Intangibles

At Cost 149,967 204,831  - -

Accumulated Depreciation (114,360) (106,135) - -

Written Down Value – Intangibles 35,607 98,696  - -

Assets Total 4,555,495 5,549,785 4,494,779 5,392,526

a.  Consolidated

2016

Buildings Infrastructure Equipment Intangibles

$ $ $ $

Written Down Value at 1 July 15 754,667 97,410 235,722 98,696

Additions - - 47,275 -

Disposals/adj - - (51,033) (54,864)

Revaluations - - - -

Write-offs / Impairment - - - -

Depreciation (29,962) (6,833) (35,252) (8,225)

Written Down Value at 30 June 16 724,705 90,577 196,712 35,607
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10. Property Plant And Equipment (cont.) 2016

Plant Furniture

and

Fittings

Motor Vehicles Total

$ $ $ $

Written Down Value at 1 July 15 3,271,945 10,016 1,081,329 5,549,785

Additions 253,300 - 398,455 699,030

Disposals/adj (511,997) 18,044 13,498 (586,352)

Revaluations  - - -

Write-offs / Impairment - - -

Depreciation (495,961) (8,435) (522,300) (1,106,968)

Written Down Value at 30 June 16 2,517,287  19,625 970,982 4,555,495

2015

Buildings Infrastructure Equipment Intangibles

$ $ $ $

Written Down Value at 1 July 14 775,785 104,244 275,165 106,996

Additions 13,165 - 53,437 -

Disposals/adj - - - -

Revaluations - - - -

Write-offs / Impairment - - - -

Depreciation (34,283)  (6,834) (92,880) (8,300)

Written Down Value at 30 June 15 754,667 97,410 235,722 98,696

2015

Plant Furniture

and

Fittings

Motor Vehicles Total

$ $ $ $

Written Down Value at 1 July 14 3,775,572 11,992 1,669,390  6,719,144

Additions 279,187 - 66,965 412,754

Disposals/adj (164,892) - (29,316) (194,208)

Revaluations - - - -

Write-offs / Impairment - - - -

Depreciation (617,922) (1,976) (625,710) (1,387,905)

Written Down Value at 30 June 15 3,271,945 10,016 1,081,329 5,549,785

b. Council

2016

Buildings Infrastructure Equipment Intangibles

$ $ $ $

Written Down Value at 1 July 15 754,667 97,410 235,722 -

Additions - - 34,863 -

Disposals/adj - - (52,554) -

Revaluations - - - -

Write-offs / Impairment - - - -

Depreciation (29,962) (6,833) (35,252) -

Written Down Value at 30 June 16 724,705 90,577 182,779 -



10. Property Plant And Equipment (cont.) 2016

Plant Furniture

and

Fittings

Motor Vehicles Total

$ $ $ $

Written Down Value at 1 July 15 3,213,382 10,016 1,081,329 5,392,526

Additions 253,300 - 398,455 686,618

Disposals/adj (429,320) - (16,671) (498,541)

Revaluations - - - -

Write-offs / Impairment - - - -

Depreciation (520,077) (1,565) (492,131) (1,085,820)

Written Down Value at 30 June 16 2,517,285 8,451 970,982 4,494,779

2015

Buildings Infrastructure Equipment Intangibles

$ $ $ $

Written Down Value at 1 July 14 775,785 104,244 300,165

Additions 13,165 - 28,437

Disposals/adj - - -

Revaluations - - -

Write-offs / Impairment - - -

Depreciation (34,283) (6,834) (92,880)

Written Down Value at 30 June 15 754,667 97,410 235,722

2015

Plant Furniture

and

Fittings

Motor Vehicles Total

$ $ $ $

Written Down Value at 1 July 14 3,658,675 11,992  1,669,390 6,520,251

Additions 279,187 - 66,965 387,754

Disposals/adj (164,892) - (29,316) (194,208)

Revaluations  - - - -

Write-offs / Impairment - - - -

Depreciation (559,588) (1,976) (625,710) (1,321,271)

Written Down Value at 30 June 15 3,213,382 10,016 1,081,329 5,392,526



11. Trade And Other Payables, 
Provisions And Other Liabilities

 Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

 $  $ $ $

(a) Trade and Other Payables

Goods and services 392,899 1,810,702 392,899 1,246,503

Non-trade payables 1,371,352 666,375 1,056,735 666,374

Total Trade and Other Payables 1,764,251 2,477,077 1,449,634 1,912,877

(b) Provisions

Annual Leave – current 1,137,275 1,336,906 1,062,634 1,096,079

Long Service Leave – current 639,803 444,681 618,276 444,681

Long Service Leave – non current 282,301 274,655 218,043 243,295

Total Provisions 2,059,379 2,056,242 1,898,953 1,784,055

Total Provisions Consist of:

Current Provisions 1,777,078 1,781,587 1,680,910 1,540,760

Non-Current Provisions 282,301 274,655 218,043 243,295

Total User Charges and Fees 2,059,379 2,056,242 1,898,953 1,784,055

(c) Other Liabilities

Credit Cards 43,734 35,585 43,734 35,585

Prepaid Revenue 318,248 107,901 65,106 107,901

Unexpended Grants to be repaid  - - -

Other 167,819 46,590 167,818 46,590

Total Other Liabilities 529,801 190,076 276,658 190,076
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12. Statement Of Cash Flows

(a) Reconciliation of cash 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and in banks and investments in money market 
instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is 
reconciled to the related items in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as follows:

 Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

 $  $ $ $

Cash at Bank 1,075,518 5,235,654 450,839 3,220,717

Short-Term Deposits 27,795,506 13,500,400 26,768,506 13,500,400

Petty Cash 590 500 500 500

Balance per Statement of Cash Flows 28,871,614 18,736,554 27,219,845 16,721,617

(b) Reconciliation of Net Surplus for Continuing 
Operations for the year to Cash from Operating 
Activities

Net Profit from Continuing Operations after tax 10,209,783 1,817,354 10,585,409 1,323,680

Depreciation & amortisation 1,106,968 1,387,905 1,085,820 1,321,270

Impairment  - - -

Bad debts 316,423 507,174 282,039 507,174

Profit on sale of fixed assets (255,491) (219,478) (255,491) (219,478)

Share of net profits from joint venture entities - - - -

Loss on sale of fixed assets 116,777 123,977 105,342 123,977

Bargain gain - (391,203) - -

Other non-cash transactions -  - -  (220,072)

Changes in assets & liabilities:

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (814,669) 630,518 (920,053) 915,162

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets 54,301 (184,542) 84,387 (184,542)

(Increase)/Decrease in Non-current Trade and Other 
Receivables

238,695 (745,869) 225,230 (225,230)

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables (1,029,249) 404,191 (742,010) (160,009)

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 339,725 19,263 86,582 19,263

Increase/(Decrease) in provision for employee entitlements 3,137 281,287 114,899 9,100

Net cash flows (used in) / from operating activities 10,286,400 3,630,577 10,652,154 3,210,295
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13. Commitments For Expenditure  Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

 $  $ $ $

(a) Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date 
but not recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

- Buildings - - - -

- Plant and Equipment - - - -

Total - - - -

(b) Finance Lease Commitments

Lease Liability - - - -

Total - - - -

(c) Operating Leases

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases:

0-1 year 834,324 824,777 834,324 824,777

1-5 years 2,850,050 3,056,456 2,850,050 3,056,456

> 5 years 5,836,330 7,212,405 5,836,330 7,212,405

Total 9,520,704 11,093,638 9,520,704 11,093,638

14. Conditions Over Grants And 
Contributions

 Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

 $  $ $ $

Grants and contributions that were obtained on the 
condition that they be expended on specified purposes 
or in a future period but which are not yet expended in 
accordance with those conditions, are as follows:

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period: 4,400,508 3,415,553 4,400,508 3,415,553

Less:

Expended during the current reporting period from 
revenues recognised in previous reporting periods.

(3,079,922) (2,305,409) (3,079,922) (2,305,409)

Amounts recognised as liabilities in current reporting 
period due to an obligation to pay back to funding body. 

 - -

Prior year unexpended grants repaid to funding bodies. (471,303) (33,516) (471,303) (33,516)

Plus:

Amounts recognised as revenues in current reporting 
period but not yet expended in accordance with the 
conditions.

11,422,042 3,323,880 11,422,042 3,323,880

Surplus balances at the close of the current 
reporting period and held as restricted assets

12,271,325 4,400,508 12,271,325 4,400,508

Net increase/(decrease) in restricted assets in the 
current reporting period

7,870,817 984,955 7,870,817 984,955
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15. Replacement And Contingency 
Reserve

 Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

 $  $ $ $

(a) Fleet Replacement

Purpose: to provide for the future replacement of fleet

Opening Balance 1,160,000 1,160,000 1,160,000 1,160,000

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve 1,686,000 - 1,686,000 -

Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve - - - -

 2,846,000 1,160,000 2,846,000 1,160,000

(b) Waste Management

Purpose: for the future development of land fill and 
associated facilities

Opening Balance 182,000 182,000 182,000 182,000

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve - - - -

Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve (182,000)  - (182,000) -

 - 182,000 - 182,000

(c) Roads Replacement

Purpose: for the future development of roads and 
associated infrastructure

Opening Balance 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve 1,195,000 - 1,195,000 -

Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve - - - -

 2,395,000 1,200,000 2,395,000 1,200,000

(d) Cemeteries

Purpose: for the future development of cemetery facilities

Opening Balance 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve 93,000 - 93,000 -

Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve  -  -

 293,000 200,000 293,000 200,000

(e) Election

Purpose: to provide funding for future elections

Opening Balance 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve - - - -

Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve - - - -

 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

(f) Disaster

Purpose: to provide funding in the event of a natural 
disaster

Opening Balance 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve - - - -

Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve - - - -

 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000

(g) Building

Purpose: to provide funding for future buildings

Opening Balance - - - -

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve 1,791,000 - 1,791,000 -

Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve - - - -

 1,791,000 - 1,791,000 -

TOTAL REPLACEMENT AND CONTINGENCY 
RESERVE

7,925,000 3,342,000 7,925,000 3,342,000

All of the reserve accounts are supported by money held in financial institutions and match the amounts shown as restricted cash in this 
financial report.
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17. Controlled Entity

Latitude 12 Pty Ltd

As at 30 June 2014, East Arnhem Regional Council had a 50% interest in the joint venture entity Latitude 12 Pty Ltd. Latitude 12 
Pty Ltd was a joint venture commercial enterprise between East Arnhem Regional Council and West Arnhem Regional Council. The 
Company is a dedicated Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) Service Provider specialising in Finance Processing, Payroll Services, 
Records Management & Archiving Services, Internal Audit, Strategic & Operational Human Resources and Risk Management, 
within remote Regional Councils and Local Government as its focussed area of operations. The voting power held by East Arnhem 
Regional Council was 37.5% and the interest in the joint venture was accounted for in the financial statements using the equity 
method of accounting.

On 18 July 2014, East Arnhem signed an agreement to purchase the remainder of the shares of Latitude 12 Pty Ltd, amounting to 
217,500 shares, for a sum of $350k, obtaining at bargain gain of $391k. This meant that Council is now the sole owner of Latitude 
12 Pty Ltd. This was calculated as follows:

2015

$

Opening investment in Latitude 12 Pty Ltd 741,198

Additional consideration paid 350,000

Total consideration invested 1,091,198

Net assets of Latitude12 Pty Ltd on consolidation 1,482,401

Bargain Gain 391,203

Council, through Resolution in January 2015, decided to divest its ownership of Latitude 12 Pty Ltd. Subsequently, Council has 
resolved on 25 May 2016 that it will not divest its ownership in Latitude 12 Pty Ltd. The previous year comparatives have been 
restated to include Latitude 12 Pty Ltd as part of the continuing operations of the group.

Refer Note 24 for financial reporting details of Latitude 12 Pty Ltd.

16. Borrowings  Consolidated Council

2016 2015 2016 2015

 $  $ $ $

Current 116,000 116,000 116,000 116,000

Non-current 1,649,000 1,765,000 1,649,000 1,765,000

Total Borrowings 1,765,000 1,881,000 1,765,000 1,881,000

The Westpac Banking Corporation commercial bill represents funding for the Council’s acquisition of the commercial properties 
located in Nhulunbuy. Subject to the terms of finance offer detailed within the agreement with Westpac Banking Corporation the 
repayments have been agreed based on a facility term of 20 years. 

The commercial bill has a mortgage over the Council’s 4 building properties and security over term deposits amounting to 
$643,786.
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18. Contingent Assets And Contingent Liabilities

Contingent Liabilities

The Council is reviewing a legal matter that is not finalised at the date of this report. It is expected that any potential claim would be 
mostly covered by insurance.

CouncilBiz

CouncilBiz was incorporated as a Local Government subsidiary on 10 June 2008 and commenced operations on 1 July 2008 
providing administrative, ICT and Business Systems support services to the 8 member Councils. It is a Local Government 
subsidiary, created as part of the Northern Territory Local Government Reform Agenda, under the Local Government Act 2008 and 
Regulations. 

Upon the incorporation of CouncilBiz, the Council made an initial funding contribution of $50,000. Under the terms and conditions 
of CouncilBiz’s Constitution, the debts and liabilities of CouncilBiz are guaranteed by the members in equal shares or on the basis 
of the formula agreed by the members. Upon the dissolution of CouncilBiz, the amount that remains after such dissolution and the 
settlement of all debts and liabilities shall be transferred to another organisation with a similar purpose as agreed to by the members 
with similar rules to CouncilBiz, such as prohibiting the distribution of assets and income to its members. As the Council will not 
realise any returns from its $50,000 funding contribution to CouncilBiz, this amount was expensed when it was incurred. 

Under the terms and conditions of the Constitution of CouncilBiz, the Council and other members have guaranteed the debts 
and liabilities of CouncilBiz. For 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2015, the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient 
reliability, and has not been recognised in the accounts.

19. Events Occuring After The Reporting Period

No matter or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect:

(a) the group’s operations in future financial years, or

(b) the results of those operations in future financial years, or

(c) the group’s state of affairs in future financial years.

20. Financial Instruments

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Council’s principal financial instruments comprise receivables, payables and cash and cash equivalents.

The Council manages its exposure to financial risks, in accordance with its policies. The objectives of the policies are to maximise 
the income to the Council whilst minimising the downside risk.

The Council’s activities expose it to normal commercial financial risk. The main risks the Council is exposed to through its financial 
instruments are liquidity risk, credit risk, market risk and interest rate risk. Risks are considered to be low.

Primary responsibility for the identification and control of financial risks rests with the Councillors and Senior Management under the 
authority of the Council Councillors.

(b) Categories of financial instruments

Recognised Financial 
Instruments

Balance 
Sheet Notes Accounting Policies Terms and conditions

i) Financial assets

Cash and cash 
equivalents

6 Details are set out in note 1(c). Interest is earned at 
thebank’s interest rate.

Loans and receivables 7 Trade Receivables are carried at nominal amounts due less 
any provision for doubtful debts. A provision for doubtful 
debts is recognised when collection of the full nominal 
amount is no longer probable. Loans are measured at 
amortised cost subsequent to initial recognition, with any 
adjustments to the carrying amount going through the profit 
and loss.

Credit sales are normally 
on 30 day terms or other 
negotiated terms.

Loans are settled on 
negotiated terms.
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(c) Net fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amount approximates fair value because of their short-term maturity. Loans and 
receivables and trade and other payables: Their carrying amounts approximate fair value.

(d) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the financial liabilities of the entity and the Council and its wholly owned entity’s subsequent ability to meet 
its obligations to repay its financial liabilities as and when they fall due.

The Council and its wholly owned entity reduces its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring its cash flows closely through rolling 
future cash flows and monitoring the ageing of receivables and payables.

The maturity of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2016 is as follows (based on consolidated amounts):

(ii) Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 11 Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the 
future for goods and services received, whether or not 
billed to the Council.

Trade liabilities are 
normally settled on 
30 day terms or other 
negotiated terms.

Within 1 
year

Within1-5 
Years

>5 Years Total

$ $ $ $

Trade and other payables 1,764,251

Other Liabilities 529,801

Borrowings 116,000 1,649,000

(e) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Council and its wholly owned entity if a customer or counterparty to a financial 
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Exposure to credit risk is monitored by Council on an ongoing basis. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, is limited to the total carrying value of 
financial assets, net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial 
statements.

The Council and its wholly owned entity do not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or group of debtors 
under financial instruments entered into by the Council and its wholly owned entity. The majority of the Council and its wholly owned 
entity’s debtors are government owned and funded entities and credit risk of the Council and its wholly owned entity is low.

(f) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in markeht prices, such as interest rates and equity prices will affect the Council and its wholly 
owned entity’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Council and its wholly owned entity do not have any 
material market risk exposure.

(g) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates. The Council and its wholly owned entity are exposed to interest rate risk primarily from its cash surpluses 
invested in short term interest bearing deposits. The deposits are only made with reputable financial institutions with maturity 
dates generally being no more than 30 days. As at balance date the Council and its wholly owned entity had the following financial 
instruments exposed to variable interest rate risk:

Financial Assets (based on consolidated amount) 2016 2015

$ $

Cash and cash equivalents 28,871,614 18,736,554

At balance sheet date, the Council has entered into a commercial bill facility that is subject to a fixed interest rate and does not 
present exposure to interest rate risk. Credit cards are the only short term financial instrument used by the Council and balances 
are cleared at month end.
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Sensitivity analysis

The table below details the interest rate sensitivity analysis of the Council at the reporting date holding all other variables constant. 
A 100 basis point change is deemed to be reasonably possible and is used when reporting interest rate risk.

The method used to arrive at the possible risk of 100 basis points was based on both statistical and non-statistical analysis. The 
statistical analysis has been based on the Council’s cash rate for the past years. This information is then revised and adjusted for 
reasonableness under the current economic circumstances.

Impact on Profit Impact on Profit 

Higher/(Lower) Higher/(Lower) 

2016 2015

$ $

Interest rate + 1.00% 288,716 187,365

Interest rate - 1.00% (288,716) (187,365)

21. Auditor’s remuneration
2016 2015

$ $

Remuneration paid to auditors for services rendered:

- Financial Statements Audit 84,350 80,850

- Other Audits 16,000 16,000

Total 100,350 96,850

For the year ended 30 June 2016, the auditor of East Arnhem Regional Council was Grant 
Thornton Audit Pty Ltd.
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22. Special Schedules

(a) Comparison of Original Estimates with Actuals 

2016 Actual 2016 Budget Variance 

$ $ $ 

Revenue

10 - General Public Services (15,663,595) (14,627,795) (1,035,800)

20 - Public Order & Safety (3,816,992) (3,918,584) 101,592

30 - Economic Affairs (13,348,878) (4,056,141) (9,292,737)

40 - Environmental Protection (2,273,174) (1,990,109) (283,065)

50 - Housing and Community Amenities (4,084,238) (2,492,852) (1,591,386)

60 – Health - - -

70 - Recreation, Culture and Religion (4,175,180) (4,059,041) (116,139)

80 – Education - - -

90 - Social Protection (8,325,852) (9,504,987) 1,179,135

 (51,687,909) (40,649,509) (11,038,400)

Operating Expenses

10 - General Public Services 13,495,478 14,108,673 (613,195)

20 - Public Order & Safety 2,655,214 3,241,722 (586,508)

30 - Economic Affairs 7,802,899 5,865,393 1,937,506

40 - Environmental Protection 1,090,596 924,815 165,781

50 - Housing and Community Amenities 4,665,377 6,193,176  (1,527,799)

60 – Health - - -

70 - Recreation, Culture and Religion 2,558,496 2,369,532 188,959

80 – Education - - -

90 - Social Protection 4,433,932 6,051,951 (1,618,019)

 36,701,992 38,755,262 (2,053,270)

Capital Expenditures

10 - General Public Services - - -

20 - Public Order & Safety - - -

30 - Economic Affairs 656,109 664,265 (8,156)

40 - Environmental Protection 18,358 - 18,358

50 - Housing and Community Amenities 12,150 - 12,150

90 - Social Protection

 686,617 664,265 22,352

Reclassifications

10 - General Public Services (43,991) 233,808 (277,799)

20 - Public Order & Safety 375,965 1,081,165 (705,200)

30 - Economic Affairs (1,769,830) (848,103)  (921,727)

40 - Environmental Protection 965,352 1,061,163 (95,811)

50 - Housing and Community Amenities (3,878,402) (3,700,324) (178,078)

60 – Health - - -

70 - Recreation, Culture and Religion 1,662,044 1,719,506 (57,462)

80 – Education - - -

90 - Social Protection 2,688,862 3,515,879 (827,017)

 - 3,063,094 (3,063,094)
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2016 Actual 2016 Budget Variance 

$ $ $ 

Net Operating (Profit) / Loss

Depreciation (1,085,820) (1,454,150) 368,330

Net Profit (Loss) (15,385,120) 378,962 (15,764,082)

Reconciliation of Statement of Comprehensive 
income

 $

Net Profit Per Function Schedule (15,385,120)

Less

Unexpended grant carried forward (Note 2a) 4,400,508

Minor other items 399,203

Net Profit for the Year (10,585,409)

22. Special Schedules (cont.)

(b) Unexpended Grants Funds 

2016 2015

$ $

1184 - Assistance with Care - 5,796

1199 - Groote Eylandt Respite Service - -

1204 - Mungkadinamanja Flexible Aged Care Service 104,053 86,321

1212 - Community Aged Care Service Galiwinku 164,525 19,632

1213 - Community Aged Care Service Umbakumba 162,128 165,698

1214 - Community Aged Care Service Gapuwiyak 87,496 123,069

1215 - Community Aged Care Service Yirrkala 99,855 32,115

1231 - NT Jobs Aged Care 35,735 70,297

1236 - Gove Community Patrol 45,816 -

1238 - NT Jobs Package RIBS - 111,579

1261 - EASC Night Patrol 351,996 161,166

1267 - Money Management Services (Money Business) - -

1301 - Service Individual ISP Clients 60,964 -

1318 - Nhulunbuy Sobering Up Shelter 49,289 6,095

1324 - Community Aged Care Service Milingimbi 12,156 78,457

1330 - YthInComYth WkrDivn  - 49,353

1337 - Naidoc Week Activities - 10,636

1349 - DOHA Priority Upgrade Mungkadinamanja Aged Care - 14,001

1354 - Community Aged Care Service – Ramingining 153,304 46,358

1357 - Refurbishment/Extension of Galiwinku Aged Care - 111,229

1375 - Workforce Mentoring Program - -

1379 - NDRRA Cyclone Carlos - Repair Damage - 365,832

1381 - Animal Management Worker Project - -

1382 - BBF Quality Measure Infrastructure Upgrade 290,704 293,873

1386 - Closing the Gap - Renovation of Angurugu Library - -

1387 – Youth in Communities – Unexpended Funds Projects - -

1395 - Local Area Traffic Management In Territory Growth Towns - -
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1396 - Shires Street Naming Project - 4,000

1400 - SPG - Animal Management Worker and Animal Control By-Laws - 41,641

1402 - Provision of Quality Community Infrastructure - -

1403 - Strengthening Governance through Local Boards  - -

1404 - Design Galiwinku Multipurpose Community & Recreation Centre  - 10,702

1405 - Design Milingimbi Multipurpose Community & Recreation Centre - 11,408

1406 - Design Gapuwiyak Multipurpose Community & Recreation Centre - 14,753

1407 - HACC One Off Funding - Ramingining Kitchen Upgrade - -

1408 - Additional Animal Management Position - Groote Eylandt 5,788 -

1409 - Commonwealth HACC Pr - 24

1410 - Disability in Home Pr - 187

1414 - Upgrade Ram Barge Road - 46,885

1416 - BBF Quality Measure Infrastructure Upgrade Umbakumba - -

1418 - Upgrade Cemetery Facilities - 134,018

1419 - IRSD - Upgrade Yirrkala Sports Oval Lighting - -

1423 - ICD - Yirrkala Basketball Courts Upgrade - -

1427 - Angurugu Internal Roads Upgrade - -

1428 - Youth Diversion Program - -

1431 – EACH - 34,492

1432 – EACHD - 435,137

1434 - Regional Councils Conversion - 46,628

1436 - SPG Milingimbi Airport 181 181

1437 - Establishment of Local Authorities - 20,514

1440 – CACP Angurugu - 7,853

1441 - Gapuwiyak Access Road - -

1442 - Yirrkala Announcement System - -

1443 - SPG - Angurugu Secure Vehicle Storage - -

1444 - Nhulunbuy Vet Service Feasibility and Business Case  - -

1445 - Indigenous Women In Sport Program - -

1446 - Angurugu Shed Enclosure - To Roll - -

1448 - Gapuwiyak Basketball Lights - -

1456 – GapuBargeRd StormRes - 82,430

1457 – LA Priority Projects 73,773 979,566

1463 – CAP Program 2014 - 305

1466 – Gap Multipurpose Hall 10,270 50,000

1467 – R2R 2014-2019 169,286 305,133

1468 – IRDS Mili Child & Family Center 43,675 80,000

1469 – IRSD Gali Multipurpose 48,729 100,000

1470 – IRSD Gap Child and Family Ctr - 20,000

1471 – MultiForeshore Light - 50,000

1474 - Keep Australia Beautiful – Milingimbi 66

1480 - IAS Children and Schooling - Announcement System 3,296

1483 - IAS Safety and Wellbeing - Night Patrol 305,806

1485 - Regional Economic Infrastructure Fund 220,000

1487 - Local Authority Project Funding 15_16 886,738

1488 - Indigenous Technical Officer Trainee 117

1489 - Ramingining Aged Care Facility Upgrade 139,836

1490 - Gapuwiyak Aged Care Facility Upgrade 409,333

1491 - Mosquito Control Program 9,186

1498 - NDRRA Cyclone Lam and Nathan Recovery & Repairs 3,199,820

1508 - Indigenous Equipment Grant - RIBS Upgrades x 4 2,273

(b) Unexpended Grants Funds 
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1509 - REIF Koolatong River Crossing Upgrade 392,470

1511 - Community Support Grant 7,500

1517 - REIF - Ramingining Airport Road Upgrade 1,555,830

1518 - REIF - Galiwinku Roads Upgrade 1,660,000

1521 - Inga Rice Foundation 3,000

1523 - Community Recovery Fund 370

1524 - Tropical Cyclone Community Recovery Fund-Galiwinku Oval Upgr 127,957

1525 - Groote Eylandt Healthy Paws Healthy people project 9,586

1526 - Indigenous RIBS Program Grant Round 1 2015-16 15,600

1527 - Home Care Package 6 13,687

1528 - First Circles Engagement Program-Galiwinku'Rise up Workshop' 799

1529 - Family Safe-Umbakumba Foreshore Solar Lighting 85,440

1530 - Galiwin'ku Charter Airport Shelter 37,316

1531 - Playgrounds for Cyclone Affected Communities 242,493

1532 - Indigenous Advancement Strategy 18,166

1533 - Youth Quick Response- 2016 June July School Holiday Activite 1,500

1534 - Community Recovery Fund-Mixed Volleyball Competition 31,400

1536 - Community Recovery Fund - Milingimbi sports precinct upgrade 70,237

1537 - Community Recovery Fund-Women's Softball Challenge 37,000

1538 - DSR Regional and remote communties - minor YSL upgrades 25,000

1539 - Milingimbi War Memorial 3,636

1540 - DEAL-Furniture Project 5,000

9997- Aged Care – Unexpended Funds 181,144 173,144

 12,271,325 4,400,508
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23. Financial Indicators (Council only)

2016 2015 2014

Operating Surplus Ratio

Operating Surplus          
Total operating Revenue

22.6% 3.6% 6.0%

This ratio expresses the operating surplus as a percentage of total operating revenue.

The increase in operating surplus ratio from last year is due to unbudgeted grants mainly relating to road 
infrastructure and upgrade received relating to Cyclone recovery in the amount of $7.97M.

2016 2015 2014

Net Financial Liabilities Ratio

Net Financial Liabilities      
Total operating Revenue

-50% -32% -24%

Net Financial Liabilities are defined as total liabilities less financial assets. These are expressed as a 
percentage of total operating revenue.

This ratio continues to improve year on year with increase in total current assets of $9.74M and decrease in 
liabilities of $0.4M. This is influenced predominantly with the unbudgeted grant funding received.

2016 2015 2014

Asset Sustainability Ratio

Net Asset Renewals       
Infrastructure & Asset Management Plan required 
expenditure

63% 29% 156%

Net asset renewals expenditure is defined as net capital expenditure on the renewal and replacement of 
existing assets.

Asset replacements during the year have doubled from last year, acquisitions were mainly plant and 
equipment and motor vehicles.

Note that the expenditure based used in this ratio is as per the infrastructure and asset management plan. 
Under the management discussion and analysis, actual depreciation figures are used to measure this 
indicator.
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2016 2015

$ $

Current Assets 1,903,740 2,248,613

Non-Current Assets 73,448 170,724

Total Assets 1,977,188 2,419,337

Current Liabilities 620,588 803,105

Non-Current Liabilities 64,257 31,360

Total Liabilities 684,845 834,465

Net Assets 1,292,343 1,584,872

Revenue 3,606,226 3,493,340

Expenses 3,298,755 3,390,873

Profit Before Income Tax 307,471 102,467

Income tax benefit (expense) - -

Profit after income tax 307,471 102,467

24. Segment Information

East Arnhem Regional Council holds 100% of the issued capital of Latitude 12 Pty Ltd. A summary of Latitude 12 Pty Ltd’s

financial position and performance, including inter entity balances with East Arnhem Regional Council, for the period is as

follows:

Council, through Resolution in January 2015, had decided to divest its ownership of Latitude 12 Pty Ltd. 
Subsequently, Council has resolved on 25 May 2016 that it will not divest its ownership in Latitude 12 Pty Ltd, and 
will bring in-house Latitude 12 Pty Ltd into the operational structure of the Council.

The Minister has issued a remedial order to the Council for this to be completed by the 15th October 2016.

During the period, Latitude 12 Pty Ltd paid East Arnhem Regional Council a dividend of $600,000.
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